
 

 

 

 
 

CITY OF SALISBURY 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
 

 

JUNE 27, 2022                                  6:00 p.m. 
Government Office Building, Room 301, Salisbury, Maryland and Zoom Video Conferencing 

 
   Times shown for agenda items are estimates only. 

 
 

6:00 p.m.  CALL TO ORDER 
   
6:01 p.m.  WELCOME/ANNOUNCEMENTS/PLEDGE  
   
6:02 p.m.  CITY INVOCATION‐ Bishop J. Anthony Dickerson, Greater Mt. Olive Full Gospel Baptist Church 
   
6:04 p.m.  PRESENTATION‐ Mayor Jacob R. Day 
   Tec Tigers VEX Robotics World Championship  
   
6:15 p.m.  ADOPTION OF LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 
   
6:16 p.m.  CONSENT AGENDA‐ City Clerk Kimberly Nichols 
   April 19, 2022 Budget Work Session Minutes 
   April 21, 2022 Budget Work Session Minutes 
   May 17, 2022 Budget Work Session Minutes 
   May 23, 2022 Council Meeting Minutes 
   Resolution No. 3174‐ approving the appointment of Michelle Hahn to the Disability 

Advisory Committee for the term ending June 2025 
   Resolution No. 3175‐ approving the appointment of Ivy McIntyre to the Disability 

Advisory Committee for the term ending June 2025 
   Resolution No. 3176‐ approving the appointment of Ron Pagano to the Disability 

Advisory Committee for the term ending June 2025 
   Resolution No. 3177‐ approving the appointment of Charly Sager to the Sustainability 

Advisory Committee for the term ending June 2025 
   
6:21 p.m.  RESOLUTION‐ Deputy City Administrator Andy Kitzrow 
   Resolution No. 3178‐ making a Declaration Of Official Intent regarding the City’s 

reasonable expectation to reimburse from proceeds of a future borrowing project 
expenditures made in connection with two separate projects generally identified as 
Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) Replacement and Station #16 HVAC Replacement 

   
6:25 p.m.  ORDINANCES‐ City Attorney Ashley Bosche 
   Ordinance No. 2729‐ 2nd reading‐ amending Chapter 5.64 of the Salisbury City Code, 

entitled “Towing Companies”, to update procedures for dispatching police directed 
towing, operations of a police directed tow on scene, and penalties for violations of        
the code 



   
6:30 p.m.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
   
6:35 p.m.  ADMINISTRATION and COUNCIL COMMENTS 
   
6:40 p.m.  ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 

Copies of the agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk’s Office, Room 
305 – City/County Government Office Building, 410‐548‐3140 or on the City’s 
website www.salisbury.md. City Council Meetings are conducted in Open Session 
unless otherwise indicated.  All or part of the Council’s meetings can be held in  
Closed Session under the authority    of the Maryland Open Meetings Law,              
Annotated  Code of Maryland General Provisions Article § 3‐305(b) by vote of the      
City Council.                                                                  

                                                                                                                             

 

                                 NEXT COUNCIL MEETING – JULY 11, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Join Zoom Meeting  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88186172560 

Meeting ID: 881 8617 2560 
Phone: 1.301.715.8592 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Posted 6/23/22 
 
 
 



 
April 19, 2022 Budget Work Session 

Approved:  
1 | P a g e  

 
 

CITY OF SALISBURY 1 
BUDGET WORK SESSION 2 

APRIL 19, 2022 3 
 4 

Public Officials Present 5 
 6 

Council President John “Jack” R. Heath   Mayor Jacob R. Day 7 
Council Vice-President Muir Boda    Councilwoman Angela M. Blake   8 
Councilwoman Michele Gregory   Councilwoman April Jackson 9 

 10 
In Attendance 11 

City Administrator Julia Glanz, Deputy City Administrator Andy Kitzrow, Finance Director Keith Cordrey, 12 
City Clerk Kimberly Nichols, City Staff and Department Heads, and members from the press 13 
****************************************************************************** 14 
The City Council convened in a hybrid Budget Session at 8:30 a.m. via Zoom and in Conference 15 
Room #306 to begin the FY22 Budget Review. Mayor Day said that revisiting the budget 16 
process this year was a reminder that personnel expenditures continued to rise and it was 17 
expensive to run the City and purchase things. Operating costs and property values were rising 18 
but property taxes were again not increasing. The proposed budget’s strength was built on the 19 
fact that the City received federal funds to get through the pandemic.  20 
 21 
Salisbury Police Department (SPD) Personnel Committee 22 
Cpl. Nicholas Amendolagine and Cpl. Dave Underwood represented the SPD Personnel Committee and 23 
thanked Council for everything they did for the SPD in the past year.  They requested the Take Home Car 24 
Program be continued. Cars lasted longer and were better maintained when taken home, and the 25 
program was a big bonus in bringing hires in the door. Many other departments were losing people due 26 
to not having the program. It helped with morale, recruitment, retention, and also helped deter crime. 27 
They discussed shift differential and asked if it could be bumped by 25 cents per hour. Currently, they 28 
received 50 cents and 55 cents, when surrounding agencies received over a dollar. 29 

 30 
Mr. Boda asked about the current fleet. Cpl. Amendolagine said the vehicles were much improved. Some 31 
of the older 2013 cars were take home cars and still used on patrols. If they were fleet cars they 32 
definitely would not still be in service today. 33 

 34 
Ms. Jackson asked about the number of officers they needed and what Council could do to help.  Cpl. 35 
Amendolagine said they were down nine or ten with seven frozen positions. All jurisdictions across the 36 
nation had recruitment problems and passing backgrounds was part of the problem, but they did not 37 
want to lower their standards. Because of lower staffing people were unable to take their time off, and 38 
the end of the year would bring about “use or lose” time. Ms. Glanz said that she was working with HR 39 
on a solution for using excessive time. 40 

 41 
President Heath asked them to share Council’s appreciation for all they did for the community. 42 
 43 
Salisbury Fire Department (SFD) Personnel Committee 44 
FF/EMT Ryan Jones, President of Salisbury Career Fire Fighters Local #4246 and Vice-President Sgt. 45 
Brandon Records joined Council. The biggest concern was that a large portion of staff with ten years or 46 
greater seniority had fallen very far behind in their steps and pay. There was a large gap of where the 47 
senior members were ending up compared to the junior members. There had been a verbal agreement 48 



 
April 19, 2022 Budget Work Session 

Approved:  
2 | P a g e  

 
 

to fix some of the compression issues after the Pay Predictability Plan (PPP) was implemented, but it 49 
never happened. Some of them could not retire after working a full career without getting another job.  50 
 51 
Mr. Records stated that the PPP was great for the people coming in from five years ago until now since 52 
they would reach their full potential., but those employed five years and up would never reach their full 53 
potential. Both shared examples of what the compression had done to long-term employees. Most of 54 
them worked a second job to make ends meet. Compared to surrounding jurisdictions, the Fire 55 
Department lagged very behind. They were the busiest per capital Fire Department in the State of 56 
Maryland and were very understaffed. A ten-year FF/EMT made $47,057 in Salisbury while the Snow Hill 57 
Volunteer Fire Department FF/EMT, which ran about 400 calls per year, made $60,999. Salisbury ran 58 
15,000 calls between the three stations. This affected the mental health and livelihood of their staff. 59 
 60 
Ms. Jackson asked if they had any plans of how to help with their request. Mr. Jones said the American 61 
Rescue Plan funds were to pay premium pay for frontline workers.  62 
 63 
President Heath asked if they had to choose between the new firemen hired and this plan, which would 64 
you choose. They answered both. He said to thank the men and women in their department. 65 
 66 
Financial Health Report 67 
The following is a synopsis of Mr. Cordrey’s presentation of the Financial Health Report and Financial 68 
Overview. The presentations are attached and included as part of the minutes. 69 

 70 
Financial Overview 71 

• Balance Sheet-Governmental Funds 72 
o FY21 Cash: $14.4 million in General Fund ($10.7 million in the prior year) 73 
o FY21 Unassigned Fund Balance: $12.6 million ($10.7 million in the prior year) 74 
o Statement of Revenues over Expenditures- during the previous year the net 75 

change in fund balance was $3.2 million.  76 
o Revenue Variances- received $2.7 million in revenues that were not budgeted 77 
o Expenditure Variances- Some of the departments did not spend all of their 78 

budgeted funds to the amount of $3.7 million   79 
o Total change in fund balance was $3,194,000.  80 

 81 
• Water Sewer Fund Statement of Net Position  82 

o $805,260 decline in Cash;  83 
$6 million of restricted investment funds went into construction in process,  84 
current liabilities increased $1.7 million; Total liabilities decreased $2.8 million; 85 
Bond indebtedness reduced by $5.7 million 86 
Unrestricted net position declined by $2.6 million (from $748,000 to ($2.6 87 
million). The fund needed more revenue. 88 

o Statement of Revenues and Expenses- Charges for services (water and sewer   89 
               billing) decreased by $415,310; Total revenues declined by $479,398; Total   90 
               Operating Expense increased by $1,458,995, Net Operating Income declined by   91 
               $2,083,767  92 

o Statement of Net Position Governmental (full accrual which shows our fixed 93 
assets and debt)- Cash (all funds) increased by $4,371,407 in cash; Total Current 94 
Liabilities decreased by $437,000; Total liabilities increased $4.7 million 95 

o Statement of Net Position Total, both governmental and business-  96 



 
April 19, 2022 Budget Work Session 

Approved:  
3 | P a g e  

 
 

 Cash increased by $3.5 million; OPEB liability last year was $25 million, this year 97 
increased to $28 million; Pension liability increased from $34 to $40 million 98 

 99 
Benchmarks 100 
 General Fund- Total Fund Balance 101 

o The Total Fund Balance went from 32.6% to 37.4% (strong) 102 
o Unassigned Fund Balance- (uncommitted net assets)- The City had a decline but 103 

was coming back up. The ARA funds brought the City to 12.6 million.  104 
o Debt to Market- Considered adequate at 3.84%  105 
o Debt per capital - $2.797 (needs improvement) 106 
o Annual Debt Service declined from $4,337,283 to $4,140,183 107 
o Ratio of 7.42% as it related to the General Fund + Capital Project Budget   108 

(adequate) (Under the benchmark of 8%) 109 
o Water and Sewer Unrestricted Balance- -10%, needs improvement) 110 
o Parking Authority Unrestricted Net Position- -67% (needs improvement) 111 
o Mr. Cordrey stated the Benchmark Summary showed that everything stayed the 112 

same in places that were strong, adequate, and needed improvement last year.  113 
 114 

FY23 Budget Highlights 115 
Revenues 116 

o Small increase to trash service ($63 to $67 per quarter) 117 
o Tax rates- no change 118 
o EMS Services- increased between 15% - 20% 119 
o Water Sewer Rates- increased by 6% 120 
o Urban Services – increased from 1.5X to 2X City rate 121 
o Parking Fund Rates- permit parking rates increased by $5 most lots and parking 122 

garage by $10 123 
o Tax Assessments went from $2.3 billion to $2.46 billion, and the tax levy went 124 

from $27 million to $28 million 125 
o Top increases in General Fund Revenues included $4.8 million in ARA Funds 126 

($3.7 million increase), Real Property ($306,000 increase); EMS Services 127 
($179,000 increase); Trash Fees (165,000 due to $4 increase); State increasing 128 
Police Grant to $165,000 and Highway User to $138,000. 129 

o Top decreases in General Fund Revenues included debt proceeds of $3.5 million, 130 
School Camera Zone funds down $150,000, OBC decreased $110,000, MDOT 131 
reimbursement down by $106,000. 132 

 133 
Personnel 134 

o 6% step increase for all personnel except police officers who received a one-step 135 
increase 136 

o Non-manager employees below step 5 and manager level employees below step 137 
10 were reviewed for a market adjustment 138 

o Market rate adjustments, Career Ladder updates, and merit increases 139 
o Health Insurance increased by 8% 140 

Transfers 141 
o Transfers coming out of General Fund and going into other funds- $337,500 142 
o $125,000 transferring out of General Fund into Special Revenue Fund for NFF 143 
o Estimated Police Grants Match ($60,000) and Community Development Grants 144 

Match ($124,000)   145 



 
April 19, 2022 Budget Work Session 

Approved:  
4 | P a g e  

 
 

o $100,000 from General Fund to support the Homeless Program 146 
 147 

Capital Outlay 148 
o 3-ton dump truck (Field Ops) 149 
o Replacement portable radios (Fire Department) 150 
o Ford F350 1-ton dump truck – 2-door (Field Ops) 151 
o Patrol vehicles (Police) 152 

 153 
 General Fund Capital Projects (see attachment for the list) 154 

 155 
General Fund Debt Service went down in FY23 Budget by $197,000. If everything in the CIP was 156 
funded, it would exceed the debt service for the debt service policy, but the City rarely ever funds 157 
everything in the CIP. In 2028 there will be a $800,000 in Debt Service. 158 

 159 
Increase FY23 vs FY12 by Function - The tax levy in FY12 was $20.4 million vs. $28 million in FY23 or 160 
an increase of $7.6 million. Public Safety increased by $10.9 million and does not include the cost of 161 
12 Safer Grant employees. 162 

 163 
 FY23 Water Sewer Impact and Revolving Funds 164 

A certain portion of every bill went into a fund dedicated to maintenance and increasing the 165 
capacity of water sewer services.  166 

  167 
 Takeaways 168 
     169 

o The City’s financial position, including cash on hand and unassigned fund balance, was 170 
strong. 171 

o Some of the weaknesses included the General Fund and CIP. The City was unable to fund 172 
all of the projects it wanted to invest in. General Fund revenues were being outpaced by 173 
expenditures. Fire Services and the Tax Differential needed to be revisited. The Parking 174 
Fund Unrestricted Net Position needed to be addressed. 175 

       176 
Mr. Kitzrow informed Council that the City was losing Operators at a record rate, and losing people 177 
in every department because the City was below where they needed to be on the pay scale.  178 
Retaining top talent was something that was going to be a continual struggle because of inflation 179 
and the market. People were either looking elsewhere to work or were being recruited away. 180 

 181 
 Council took a break from 10:00 a.m. to 10:10 a.m. 182 
 183 
Department of Infrastructure & Development (DID) and Housing & Community Development (HCDD) 184 
Personnel Committees 185 
Engineer Rachel Logan requested additional funding for positions either currently needed or soon would 186 
be needed in DID. The positions included an additional Engineer, Inspector, and Deputy Director. Ms. 187 
Glanz acknowledged the Deputy Director position was in the Proposed Budget, but the other two 188 
positions, although much needed due to the Here is Home, had not been funded in the budget.  189 
 190 
Requests on behalf of the HCDD included: 191 

 More money for training 192 
 Additional personal day per year 193 
 Increase in the 457 match 194 



 
April 19, 2022 Budget Work Session 

Approved:  
5 | P a g e  

 
 

 Increase in annual time at 25 and 30 years 195 
 Birthday off with pay 196 
 Free cleanings at the dentist 197 
 Recognition day with excused sick leave 198 
 Internal childcare program 199 
 Longevity increase 200 
 Day off for Election Day 201 
 Increased cost of living raise 202 

 203 
Ms. Blake asked what the top three priorities would be and Ms. Hardesty answered training, free 204 
cleanings at the dentist, and an increase in annual time allotted for at 25 and 30 years. 205 
 206 

Field Operations (Field Ops)/ Water Works Personnel Committee  207 
Peter Torigo and Phillip Lawrence joined Council at the table and requested the rate of pay be raised for 208 
all employees. Mr. Torigo said that many low-skilled, low-risk, low-effort jobs were being offered to start 209 
at the pay that the City paid their skilled workers, without the risks. Many of the entry level positions 210 
were staying open a lot longer and it was more difficult to find candidates with the skills needed for 211 
some of the positions.  Mr. Lawrence said that the Police and Fire received raises, and yet Field Ops 212 
employees had to get special licenses for the specialized work that they did. Ms. Glanz said that one of 213 
the challenges was that they could not officially get their license until they were with the City for three 214 
years, and then they were scooped away by another municipality or County, which could pay much 215 
more. It seemed the City had become the training ground for Water and Wastewater. 216 
 217 
Mr. Torigo informed Council the State was changing the way CDL licenses could be acquired with a much 218 
more difficult and expensive process. With this, he could see many CDL license holders being poached 219 
away from the City by companies willing to pay sign on bonuses and higher wages. Ms. Glanz said the 220 
City was working with the City’s Risk and Safety Manager Frank Ennis to bring training in house. The City 221 
could designate themselves as a training site and agreed that sign on bonuses should be considered.  222 
 223 
Another request was compensation for on-call status. Employees had restrictions on personal time while 224 
on-call. Comp time would make employees very happy, and Administration would look into the matter.   225 
 226 
Employee reviews were good to have but those with good reviews were not given any more incentive 227 
than those with bad reviews. Ms. Glanz said that the HR Director would look into the matter. 228 
 229 
Salisbury Police Department (21021) 230 
Colonel Dave Meienschein joined Council to discuss the Police Department’s budget. He reported the big 231 
question in the SPD budget was new legislation as it pertained to the medical accounts, particularly the 232 
new Psychological Services and PT Exams. It was unknown what they would cost. Most of the accounts 233 
slightly increased over last year, particularly Medical Professional Services and the increased price of 234 
hiring. Legal Services, accreditation costs, pest control, building maintenance remained flat from last 235 
year. There was a $1,000 increase in alarm costs to secure the facilities. The Body Cam and In-Car Cam 236 
Maintenance contract increased, as well as a $25,000 increase attributed to the CAD RMS System.  In 237 
mental health, agility and implicit bias, the annual costs were estimated at $40,000, not including the 238 
Countywide Accountability Board which was difficult to budget at a possible  $30,000 to $50,000. 239 
 240 
President Heath noted the increase in the total budget for employees was $1.177 million from the 241 
projection of the previous year. $101,000 was clerical salary, $671,000 non-clerical salaries, $113,000 242 
health insurance, $84,000 Workers Comp, and $326,000 for LEOPS. He was concerned that there may be 243 



 
April 19, 2022 Budget Work Session 

Approved:  
6 | P a g e  

 
 

needed budget amendments for the non-personnel side. Colonel Meienschein said they estimated $300 244 
per officer in Mental Health Services, $100 per officer in Physical Agility, and $10,000 total for Implicit 245 
Bias testing and training.  246 
 247 
When Mr. Boda asked if he was comfortable with the Vehicle Maintenance budget of $150,000, Colonel 248 
said he thought the number was low. They increased their take home fleet which had many advantages, 249 
but had an impact on maintenance. Ms. Jackson asked what the $1,000 for the Youth Program funded, 250 
and he said it paid for the Badges for Baseballs program, working in the schools, and helping with 251 
National Night Out. She questioned whether it was enough to fund all they wanted to do, and asked 252 
about accepting donations, which Colonel said would be welcomed through the Personnel Committee.  253 
About three years ago the Major position was replaced with additional Lieutenant positions.  254 
 255 
Police Communications (PCC) (21025) 256 
Colonel Meienschein reviewed the budget requests for PCC. 257 
 258 
Animal Control (21029) 259 
Chief Duncan arrived to the meeting and said there were no major changes to the accounts. 260 
 261 
President Heath asked Chief Duncan to share Council’s appreciation for all they did. 262 
 263 
City Clerk (11100) 264 
City Clerk Kim Nichols presented the requested budget for the Clerks Office. Level funding was 265 
requested but because of the new laptop for Asst. Clerk Julie English, the amounts were adjusted in the 266 
accounts. There was enough funding in the Training account. Ms. English had been able to do all of her 267 
first-year trainings online this year, and took advantage of many free sessions.  268 
 269 
City Council (11000) 270 
Mrs. Nichols presented the requested level funded budget for the City Council’s accounts. They 271 
discussed the Coffee With Your Council account and planned on having another event soon. 272 
 273 
Volunteer Fire Department  274 
Ms. Glanz presented the requests from the Volunteer Fire Department. Recruitment activity increased 275 
and 22,000 volunteer hours of calls and trainings were logged. They assisted in securing both the new 276 
Dive Trailer and Special Ops Trailer which were removed from the CIP. They continued to support the 277 
lease payment but it used up the entire $40,000 that the City allocated to the Volunteer corporations. 278 
The Recruitment & Retention Coordinator was a 50/50 split this year. They would appreciate more than 279 
the $40,000 the City could provide, were advocating for the Rescue Truck this year rather than next 280 
year, additional training in the amount of $5,000 and for the City to continue funding LOSAP.  281 
 282 
President Heath asked which department funded HAZMAT training and such, and would ask Fire Chief 283 
Tull later in the day. Ms. Glanz said the volunteers added tremendous value to the City. 284 
 285 
Mayor’s Office (12000) 286 
Deputy Administrator Andy Kitzrow said that last year they did the mid-year budget amendment to add 287 
Nate Sansom’s position to the Mayor’s Office. Other funds were moved around to budget flat. 288 
 289 
President Heath asked about the health insurance rebates and Mr. Cordrey said it would come in 290 
October. Workers Comp, which was based on the frequency modification factor, increased over the past 291 
year. Mr. Cordrey would not get a final bill until late May this year. 292 



 
April 19, 2022 Budget Work Session 

Approved:  
7 | P a g e  

 
 

Department of Infrastructure & Development (DID) 293 
Acting Director Rick Baldwin joined Council to present the requested budget.  294 
  295 
Engineering (31000)  296 
The budget was flat except for due increases. The funding was for 23 positions and one additional 297 
position.  298 
 299 
Planning & Zoning (19000) 300 
One person was added to the department, and it was level funded. 301 
 302 
Building Permits (25100) 303 
The funding for the four people in BPI was also level funded. 304 
 305 
Stormwater and Stormwater Utility Fund (60850) 306 
These accounts were level funded.  307 
 308 
Water Engineering (81080) 309 
The big change in the account was in Equipment for the new plotter requested for the past three years. 310 
It has been funded with a three-year maintenance agreement. 311 
 312 
Sewer Engineering (84080) 313 
This was also level budgeted. 314 
 315 
CIP 316 
The Impervious Surface Reduction Project was on Mt. Hermon Road and was a public-private 317 
partnership. It was formerly a Rite-Aid and now a doctor’s office. 318 
 319 
Finance Department (15000)  320 
Mr. Cordrey discussed the $14,000 increase in check fees. There was a standard fee associated with 321 
every check and every deposit, all set by the amount of money the City maintained in its checking 322 
account but the City’s money was worth less than it did a year ago. 323 
 324 
Water Billing (81570) 325 
There was another $2,000 in bank fees for the same reason as above. 326 
 327 
Sewer Billing (85070)  328 
There was a $5,000 increase in bank fees. The Hardship Program was reduced but they would ask 329 
Council to add back funds to the program. The new Water Incentive Program (WIN) would need funding. 330 
 331 

Fire Department (24030) 332 
Fire Chief John Tull, Deputy Chief Darren Scott and Deputy Chief Chris O’Barsky joined the Council to 333 
discuss the Fire Department Budget. Chief Tull discussed items on the essential items list which included 334 
several new positions which were reclassifications for current positions to EMS Sergeants, funding for 335 
computer usage programs for the incident reporting software, and a Rescue Truck. There were not many 336 
changes in Operating, and the bulk of the changes in the budget were in Personnel Services.  337 

 338 
Chief Tull discussed how compression impacted the pay of senior positions due to the years where there 339 
were no cost of living increases. As a solution, the America Rescue Plan had funds designed for 340 
emergency workers. Otherwise, the problem would have to be fixed a bit at a time.  341 



 
April 19, 2022 Budget Work Session 

Approved:  
8 | P a g e  

 
 

Ms. Blake asked if this was ongoing or if we knew this existed, and President Heath said it had been 342 
ongoing for at least three years.  343 
 344 
Ms. Glanz said that positions were underfunded compared to other jurisdictions. They tried to chip away 345 
over the years with the Predictability Plan. There was no easy way to fix the problem and it would cost 346 
millions of dollars, which the City did not have. 347 
 348 
Chief Tull was concerned with the starting pay because it was no longer competitive in the market. The 349 
City was losing people to Snow Hill and Delmar because their starting pay was higher and their pay 350 
ranges got them farther much quicker. President Heath said if starting salaries were increased it would 351 
be worse for those senior employees who we couldn’t do anything for. Ms. Glanz thought that 352 
discussing Chief Tull’s idea of shifting the pay scale to increase starting pays had value. Chief Tull also 353 
said that electricity and fuel increased but natural gas decreased.  354 
 355 
CIP items funded included the replacement of HVAC system at Station 16, beginning the replacing of the 356 
portable radios, and the Rescue Truck. The current Rescue Truck, an American LaFrance, was 20 years 357 
old and they could no longer find parts for it. 358 

 359 
Water Works 360 
Director Cori Cameron was joined by Utilities Superintendent Brian Lewis and discussed the essential 361 
items. She reported that there were 17 people advancing in the Career Ladders this year and the most 362 
essential item was the Chemical Budget. The price of chemicals have increased drastically and an 363 
additional  $145,000 was requested over last year. The ground storage tank at Paleo was budgeted to 364 
be painted for $136,000. Ms. Cameron said they were struggling to hire and retain employees, and the 365 
Governor started a task force for Wastewater. Everybody was retiring and they could not get people to 366 
come into the business. They wanted to get into the high schools and community colleges to educate 367 
on the profession as a career. Once they obtain their three years of training, operators receive their 368 
certifications only to be hired by Tidewater, Artesian and other utilities for more than the City paid.  369 

 370 
Water Administration (83000) 371 
No changes as it was a level budget. Small things were moved around.  372 

 373 
Water Treatment Plant (82075) 374 
Grounds was increased by $7,000 to keep the grounds cut. President Heath asked if the Chemicals 375 
Account was enough based on what they heard earlier from Ms. Cameron.  She was unsure if it was 376 
enough – they could not project. They were put out for three-year bids, but currently they were not 377 
holding because some of the chemicals were going up quarterly. Procurement Director Jennifer Miller 378 
was able to hold them to contract for six months but they were not renewing right now with the City for 379 
three-year renewals. Some vendors held for a year, and some have increased quarterly. The market was 380 
still unstable at this point and the costs of shipping has increased.  381 
 382 
Water & Sewer Water (82076) 383 
Ms. Cameron requested a part-time admin but it was cut from the Proposed Budget. There were 384 
currently four vacant technician positions that they were actively trying to fill. 385 
 386 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (86083)  387 
$1.4 million was requested for chemicals. Ms. Cameron said that chemicals, equipment and supplies had 388 
all increased in cost, and next year would be very challenging.  389 
 390 



 
April 19, 2022 Budget Work Session 

Approved:  
9 | P a g e  

 
 

Water & Sewer Utilities (86085) 391 
They attempted to start the Fines Account for sewer overflows at $10,000 under Essential Items and 392 
requested to increase some of the Equipment Accounts because the costs of meters, fittings and 393 
everything had increased. 394 
  395 
Pretreatment (86086) 396 
Nothing changed in the budget. 397 
 398 
Water Works 2nd Admin Account (87000) 399 
She decreased Other Attorney by $5,000 and moved it under City Attorney to deal with PFAS and 400 
pretreatment issues. 401 
 402 
CIP 403 
She reported IT was working on Software and Fiber. The Park Well Field was the rehabilitation of the 404 
City’s wells. There was the Paleo Well Storage Tank painting for $70,000. The Dump Truck was for the 405 
Wastewater Treatment Plant. The Structural Study was in addition to the money they already had. The 406 
study was completed and they were going to start construction to support the buildings that were 407 
falling, cracking and moving. She explained the reason the raw water line at Naylor Mill Road was 408 
defunded. They were at 30% on the engineering and design phase of the building and the initial 409 
numbers have come back at $21 million and there was only $3 million budgeted. They were trying to do 410 
it in a couple of phases and the first phase should be $10 - $11 million, and would attempt to secure 411 
federal funds for infrastructure for the construction.  412 
 413 
President Heath asked Ms. Cameron to thank the Water Works staff for all they did. 414 
 415 
Field Operations (Field Ops)  416 
Field Ops Director Jana Potvin joined Council and discussed the essential items list, which included a 417 
Signal Light Tech. This position worked with electricity but was not a certified electrician. An electrician 418 
was on the list but was not essential for this year while other items were more important. One mechanic 419 
position was frozen and some of the funding utilized to increase the pay of the existing staff. Two people 420 
were brought in a higher pay grade, with two mechanics still needed to be brought up another grade. 421 
The Sanitation Supervisor would become the Sanitation Manager, and the Office Manager .  422 

 423 
She explained Training was a large amount and needed $6,000 additional for certifications, and the 424 
Safety Account could be used for some of the training. Building improvements included repairs to the 425 
pole building, fixing windows with bullet holes, doors replaced, and garage electrical upgrades. The 426 
traffic-water meter- carpentry building needed work on the back steps railings which had water damage, 427 
needed painting, and cracks in the concrete blocks needed sealing.  428 
 429 
Sanitation frequently ran into overtime. Their days seemed to run long and equipment not working like 430 
it should did not help the matter. Three Sanitation workers were paid out of the Stormwater Sweeping 431 
Account. The Railroad Right-Of-Way lease was $1,800 for the easement that went through the site and 432 
the agreement would need to be signed before they began construction on any of the new buildings on 433 
the site.  434 
 435 
Traffic (22000) 436 
Ms. Potvin discussed positions and vacancies in the division. $2,000 was cut from the account, leaving 437 
$10,000 for next year. As of April she spent $7,052 in overtime. 438 
 439 



 
April 19, 2022 Budget Work Session 

Approved:  
10 | P a g e  

 
 

What was not funded in the CIP that Ms. Potvin wanted consideration for was pavement markers for 440 
$20,000. President Heath said that this could be placed in a budget amendment.  441 
 442 
(30000) 443 
The Office Manager’s Career Ladder was left out. Overtime was reduced in this. 444 
 445 
Streets (31150) 446 
They still needed a vehicle to replace one that was surplussed. Was appreciative of the Ford F350.  447 
 448 
Sanitary Waste Collection (32061) 449 
There was a frozen position that needed to be reallocated to Parks. An additional $3,500 was requested 450 
in Comp Time. 451 
 452 
There were two Fords F250 with snow plows that were placed on the list that were needed for Parks and 453 
Streets. 454 
 455 
Recycling (32062) 456 
This was flat budgeted, except for overtime which was cut from $1,800 to $500.  457 
 458 
Fleet Management (34064) 459 
$500 was cut in overtime. 460 
 461 
Carpentry (35000)  462 
$2,300 has been spent so far in comp and overtime. Only $1,000 has been budgeted after a $2,150 cut 463 
by Administration. 464 
 465 
Parks (45000) 466 
One of the Field Op’s techs has transferred to Wastewater and it was the position that they proposed to 467 
freeze. One of the vacant positions, a crew leader, has been filled. $7,900 was cut from overtime, leaving 468 
$10,500 for next year. Currently, she has spent $9,473 this year. 469 
 470 
Parks & Rec (45001) 471 
Mr. Kitzrow explained that as part of the Arts and Culture Department, they dedicated two staff 472 
members to the events. $11,000 of overtime, $27,000 out of part-time salaries, $30,000 allocation to 473 
National Folk Festival, and salary savings from Bill Sterling’s retirement were used to pay for the two 474 
staff members. They took a three-year average of overtime and used the excess. A lot of what Field Ops 475 
had done that was overtime, particularly with events, would be done with these two staff members. 476 
During COVID there was no overtime, and that was included in the 3 three-year averages.  477 
 478 
Parking (31154) 479 
20% of the Deputy Director’s salary was paid out of Parking and would now be paid 100% out of Traffic.  480 
 481 
Marina (47000) 482 
Mr. Kitzrow said that the Marina Fund and Parking Fund were separate entities with the revenue used to  483 
offset it and had adjustments made since they were supposed to be at least a break-even venture. That 484 
was why there were some parking rate increases proposed. Fees were also proposed for Marina slip 485 
rentals to help cover the increases in expenditures.  486 
 487 



 
April 19, 2022 Budget Work Session 

Approved:  
11 | P a g e  

 
 

Ms. Potvin noted a large increase in the electricity rate, and they hoped the increases in the slip rentals 488 
and the 30 amp and 50 amp electrical rates would help. There were bulkhead and decking 489 
improvements needed at the Marina and asked how long before it was not considered a City asset. 490 
 491 
Stormwater Sweeping (60820) 492 
Overtime non-clerical was budgeted at $500. The revised budget for the past several years was $5,500 493 
and so far this year spent $3,100 in overtime and comp time. It was one they frequently had to pull for 494 
overtime. They were able to transfer salary from vacancies in the department but were close to being 495 
fully staffed and would not have the funds available. 496 
 497 
Fuel budget 498 
Mr. Kitzrow informed Council that fuel was initially budgeted at $2.27 gallon and was revised to 499 
$2.81/gallon which amounted to about $38,000 throughout all the departments.  500 
 501 
Housing and Community Development Department (HCDD) 502 
HCDD Director Ron Strickler joined Council at the table and introduced Code Compliance Manager Dan 503 
Hogg, Office Manager Trish Warrington, Housing and Homelessness Manager Christine Chestnutt, and 504 
Community Relations Manager Rachel Manning. 505 
 506 
Essential items for the department included:  the addition of a deputy director; added cleaning services 507 
to the Newton Street Community; reclassification of the Housing and Homelessness Manager and 508 
Community Relations Manager to a Grade 10 from Grade 9; reclassification for the Community Programs 509 
Coordinator from a Grade 6 to Grade 7; Anne Street Village operational expenditures; and inclusion of at 510 
least five code enforcement officers into the LEOPS State Retirement system.  511 
 512 
President Heath suggested checking with Dove Point and other businesses employing people with 513 
disabilities when Mr. Strickler made the decision to hire a cleaning company.  514 
 515 
501006 Part Time Salaries 516 
$33,000 was allocated in 2022 and funds were pulled from Personnel Services, which paid for the 517 
Summer Youth Employment Program (SYEP). It was determined the best course of action was to bring 518 
the SYEP into a part time status as an employee versus a stipend position. It was effective and the 519 
money was allocated to part time salaries in ’22 and they were paid like any other hourly employee of 520 
the City. $9,000 was added from the AmeriCorps position which had not been filled. This was all grouped 521 
together into part time salaries which included the three part time employees for the Community 522 
Centers, coverage at both community centers for events, and eight FYEP positions.  523 
 524 
Rubbish Removal (523261)  525 
This account was increased. A Strategic Demolition Grant was received in FY21 that lasted two years. Did 526 
not know if the grant would be renewed.  527 
 528 
Tree Cutting (523634) 529 
This account was reduced to $1,000 from $1,500. They would be training in May on tree removal.  530 
 531 
Janitorial Services reduced by $3,820 knowing some of the funds would be allocated for the Newton 532 
Street Community Center cleaning. 533 
 534 
Computer Software (534502) 535 



 
April 19, 2022 Budget Work Session 

Approved:  
12 | P a g e  

 
 

Part of the account was the Code Enforcement Software they utilized currently. Knowing they would be 536 
transitioning to EnerGov, they needed to maintain the service to help with that transition. 537 
 538 
Rent 554400 539 
There was a 5% increase in rent due to the increase being built into the lease. 540 
 541 
Cellular Phones (555402) 542 
Increased $1,000 to cover the additional line that was added for additional personnel. 543 
 544 
Advertising (55501 and 90501) 545 
Reduced by $400 and requested an additional $1,000 for Newton Street advertising. 546 
 547 
CIP 548 
Mr. Strickler discussed the one request for FY23 which was a replacement vehicle for a 2006 which was 549 
totaled and LGIT paid $6,000 towards replacement. There was a trailer and equipment stolen from the 550 
City Yard, and with the $10,000 deductible they had to move funds around to buy replacements.  551 
 552 
With nothing further to discuss, the Budget Work Session adjourned at 4:09 p.m. 553 
 554 
 555 
______________________________________ 556 
City Clerk 557 

 558 
______________________________________ 559 
Council President 560 



Presented April 2022



Table of Contents

 Benchmark Ratios  

Key financial ratios are compared to GFOA standards
• Total Fund Balance
• Unassigned Fund Balance
• Debt to Market Value
• Debt per Capita
• Annual Debt Service
• Water and Sewer Unrestricted Fund Balance
• Parking Authority
• Summary

 FY 23 Budget

• Highlights
• Revenues
• General Fund Expenditures by Category
• General Fund Expenditures by Department
• Capital Projects



Benchmarks

3



General Fund - Total Fund Balance

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023

Total Fund 
Balance

$10,738,933
as of June 30, 

2018

$12,775,227
as of June 30, 

2019

$13,811,228
as of June 30, 

2020

$17,005,761
as of June 30, 

2021

Budgeted
Expenditures 38,992,253

2018
40,775,227

2019
42,386,053

2020
45,462,945

2021

Ratio 31.9%
(Strong)

31.7%
(Strong)

32.6%
(Strong)

37.4%
(Strong)

Strong > 25 %

Adequate 10‐25 %

Weak < 10 %

4



General Fund - Unassigned Fund Balance

> 25 %

10‐25 %

< 10 %

5



Debt to Market Value

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021

General Obligation
Debt $ 99,578,997 $ 94,970,713 $ 99,605,678 $ 92,453,779

Market Value of 
Property $ 2,151,596,042 $ 2,228,360,951 $ 2,312,626,586 $ 2,409,081,247

Ratio 4.63%
(Adequate)

4.26%
(Adequate)

4.31%
(Adequate)

3.84
(Adequate)

Strong < 3 %

Adequate 3 – 6 %

Weak > 6 %

6



Debt Per Capita

June 30,
2018

June 30,
2019

June 30,
2020

June 30,
2021

Citywide General 
Obligation Debt $ 99,578,997 $ 94,970,713 $ 99,605,678 $ 92,453,779

Population 33,000 33,000 33,000 33,050

Debt Per Capita
$ 3,017

(Needs 
Improvement)

$ 2,878
(Needs 

Improvement)

$ 3,018
(Needs 

Improvement)

$ 2,797
(Needs 

Improvement)

Strong < $1,000

Adequate $ 1,000 ‐ $2,500

Weak > $2,500

7



Annual Debt Service - General Fund 

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023

Budget Debt Service $ 4,008,907 $ 3,867,449 $ 4,337,283 $ 4,140,183

General Fund + 
Capital Project Budget $ 44,221,824 $ 48,773,991 $ 51,464,722 $ 55,796,796

Ratio 9.07% 
(Adequate)

7.93% 
(Adequate)

8.43% 
(Adequate)

7.42% 
(Adequate)

Adequate <=  10%

8



Water and Sewer Unrestricted Balance 

FY 19 FY 20 FY 21 FY 22 FY 23

Unrestricted 
Fund Balance

$ (125,369)
as of June 30, 

2017

$ 1,989,300
as of June 30, 

2018

$ 893,767
as of June 30, 

2019

$ 748,706
as of June 30, 

2020

$ (1,844,472)
as of June 30, 

2021

Water Sewer
Operating

Revenue
$ 16,616,820

(FY19 Budget)
$ 16,547,775

(FY20 Budget)
$ 16,140,750

(FY21 Budget)
$ 16,909,350

(FY22 Budget)
$ 20,303,088

(FY23 Budget)

Ratio - .75 %
(Needs Improvement)

12%
(Needs 

Improvement)

5.5%
(Needs 

Improvement)

4.43%
(Needs 

Improvement)

-10%
(Needs 

Improvement)

9

Strong > 25%

Adequate 17 – 25%

Weak < 17%



Parking Authority Unrestricted Net Position 

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023

Unrestricted Net 
Position

$181,501
as of June 30, 

2018

$ (98,781)
as of June 30, 

2019

$ (173,401)
as of June 30, 

2020

$ (443,042)
as of June 30, 

2021

Revenue $678,200 $675,000 $782,810 $661,447

Ratio 26.8%
Strong

-14%
Needs

Improvement

-22%
Needs

Improvement

--67%
Needs

Improvement

10



Benchmark Summary 

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023

General Fund Balance  Strong Strong Strong Strong

Unassigned Fund 
Balance Adequate Adequate Adequate Adequate

Debt to Market Value Adequate Adequate Adequate Adequate

Annual Debt Service Adequate Adequate Adequate Adequate

Overall Debt per Capita Needs
Improvement

Needs
Improvement

Needs
Improvement

Needs
Improvement

Unrestricted Net Position 
Water/Sewer 

Needs
Improvement

Needs
Improvement

Needs
Improvement

Needs
Improvement

Unrestricted Net Position 
Parking Fund Strong

Needs
Improvement

Needs
Improvement

Needs
Improvement

11



FY23 Budget Highlights 

12



FY 23 Budget Highlights - Revenue

 General Fund ‐ Rates and Fees
• Trash Service – increased from $63.00 to $67.00 per Qtr.
• Tax Rates – no change 
• Fire Dept. fees: 

EMS Service – increase between 15%‐20%
• Others – see Fee Schedule in Fee Ordinance 

13



FY 23 Budget Highlights - Revenue

 Tax Rates 
• No change

 Water Sewer Rates 
• Water Sewer Rates – increase 6%
• Water Sewer Urban Services – increase from 1.5x to 2.0x

 Parking Fund Rates 
• Permit parking rates – increase by $5 most lots and parking 

garage by $10 

 Storm Water Rates 
• Storm Water Fee – no change

14



FY 23 Tax Assessments 

15



FY 23 General Fund Revenues

16



FY 23 Budget Highlights – Personnel 

17

• A 6% step increase is included for all personnel with the exception 
of the police officers who received a one step increase

• Non-manager level employees below step 5 and manager level 
employees below step 10 were reviewed for a market adjustment 

• Market Rate adjustments

• Career Ladder Updates 

• Merit increases

• Health insurance increased by 8%



FY 23 Budget Highlights – Personnel 

18



FY 22 Budget Highlights – Personnel 

19



FY 23 Budget Highlights -Transfers 

20

PayGO for General Capital Projects  337,500

Transfer – Special Revenue Fund NFF 125,000

Police Grants Match  60,000

Community Development Grants Match 124,000

Homeless Program  100,000

TOTAL Org 91001 >> $ 746,500



FY23  General Fund Capital Outlay

21



FY23 Water Sewer Capital Projects  

22



FY23 General Fund Debt Service 

23



FY23 General Fund Debt Service 

24

The schedule below was developed during the construction of our 
FY23‐FY27 CIP plan.  It assumes all items included in the CIP plan to 
be funded by bond were approved in annual budget going forward 
and then compares the estimated debt service to the max debt 
service per the City’s Financial Policy.



25

The Tax Levy in FY12 was $ 20.4M 
vs. $ 28M in FY23 or an increase of  
$ 7.6M. This tax revenue increase 
pales in comparison to the $ 19
increase of major departments and 
debt service costs during that 
period.  Public Safety alone has 
increased by $ 10.9M and that 
does not include the cost of 12 
safer grant employees.    



FY23 Water Sewer Impact and Revolving Funds

26



Takeaways…Strengths 

27

• Financial Position
Presently the City enjoys a strong Financial Position.  This status is 
based on the financial data as of the FY21 Audit.

• Unassigned Fund Balance
The General Fund’s Unassigned Fund Balance is strong as of 6/30/21.

• Water / Sewer Project Status 
Many Water and Sewer Projects have either been recently completed or 
funded.  Few have been deferred which if so would have resulted in 
infrastructure liabilities.



Takeaways… Weaknesses

28

• General Fund CIP 
The inability to fund many of the improvements mapped for FY23 in our recent Capital 
Improvement plan could be seen as small crack in our financial framework. Tt has been 
getting harder to fit CIP into the General Fund budgets.   Should CIP pile up they are the 
equivalent of unfunded liabilities.  

• General Fund Revenues 
We can count on rising expenses.  Medical cost are expected by many to rise 6‐8% per year.  
The predictable pay plan along represents a $500k+ increase per year in the General Fund.  
Finding revenues to match these rising cost is expected to become increasingly difficult.  

• Fire Services 
The county’s contributions for fire services do not represent their true share.  A new 
framework, to recover the true cost of fire services, is essential.

• Tax Differential 
The citizen’s of Salisbury deserve Tax Differential as recommended by past studies.

• Parking Fund 
The Parking Fund Unrestricted Net Position is a deficit.  This requires a new path to be 
mapped.  



Questions 

29



1

Presented April 2022



2

Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds 

FY20 FY21
Cash FY21  $14.4M vs FY20 $10.7M

Unassigned FB $12.6M vs $10.7M



3

Analysis of FY20 Variances 

How did we budget for a use of $1.7M of surplus, but 
wind up with an a use of surplus of $1.45? 
‐ Note the encumbrance carry forwards from FY18 

increased the budgeted use of surplus by $848k and 
that ordinances passed during FY19 increased the 
budget use  another $766k; resulting in a final 
budgeted use of surplus of $3.4M.  

‐ The variances (Revenue $925k and  Expenditure 
$3.9M) result in the actual increase of fund balance 
in the amount of $1.45M.



4

Analysis of FY20 Variances 

How did we budget for a use of $1.7M of surplus, but 
wind up with an a use of surplus of $1.45? 
‐ Note the encumbrance carry forwards from FY18 

increased the budgeted use of surplus by $848k and 
that ordinances passed during FY19 increased the 
budget use  another $766k; resulting in a final 
budgeted use of surplus of $3.4M.  

‐ The variances (Revenue $925k and  Expenditure 
$3.9M) result in the actual increase of fund balance 
in the amount of $1.45M.



5

Water Sewer Fund Statement of Net Position



6

Water Sewer Fund Statement of Net Position



7

Statement of Revenues Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
Water Sewer Fund               



8

Statement of Net Position Governmental    



9

Statement of Net Position Governmental    



10

Statement of Net Position Total   



11

Statement of Net Position Total   

 OPEB Liability
• FY16   $   21.3M
• FY17   $   22.2M
• FY18   $  19.2M
• FY19   $   22.2M
• FY20   $   25.1M
• FY21   $   28.1M

 Pension Liability
• GASB 68 requires the 

City to record it’s share 
of the States Unfunded 
Pension Liability

• FY16   $   29M
• FY17   $   37M
• FY18   $   32M
• FY19   $   33M
• FY20   $   34M
• FY21   $   40M



Questions 

12



13

Avg. $ 341k 
per year or 
.76% of $ 45M 



14



ORIGINAL BUDGET VS. FINAL BUDGET

FY20 original Budget includes a use of surplus of $1.6M.  At then end of the year the budgeted use 
of surplus increased to $4.2M due to Encumbrance Carryforward from the prior year of $1.2M and 
ordinances passed during the year of 1.4M.  

15



16



17



18



 
April 21, 2022 Budget Work Session 

Approved:  
1 | P a g e  

 
 

CITY OF SALISBURY 1 
BUDGET WORK SESSION 2 

APRIL 21, 2022 3 
 4 

Public Officials Present 5 
 6 

Council President John “Jack” R. Heath   Council Vice-President Muir Boda  7 
Councilwoman Angela M. Blake   Councilwoman Michele Gregory  (left 10:00 a.m.) 8 
Councilwoman April Jackson  9 
 10 

Public Officials Absent 11 
Mayor Jacob R. Day 12 

 13 
In Attendance 14 

City Administrator Julia Glanz, Deputy City Administrator Andy Kitzrow, Finance Director Keith Cordrey, 15 
City Clerk Kimberly Nichols, City Staff and Department Heads, and members from the press 16 
****************************************************************************** 17 
The City Council convened in a hybrid Budget Session at 8:30 a.m. via Zoom and in Conference 18 
Room #306.  19 
 20 
Human Resources (18500) 21 
Director Meg Caton joined Council and noted the biggest change to the budget was the addition of the 22 
Training Specialist and noted that Risk Management had also become part of the HR Team.  23 
 24 
President Heath asked whether the Workers Comp and Health Insurance increases were due to the 25 
added personnel (she said they were) and he thought the salary discussion should address compression.  26 
 27 
Procurement (16000) 28 
Director Jennifer Miller and Contract Specialist Michael Lowe joined Council to discuss the budget. Ms. 29 
Miller noted the essential items were reclassification requests for herself, the Contract Specialist, and 30 
the buyer position to bring the salaries up to a very reasonable market rate. Ms. Glanz noted the 31 
Director position and Contract Specialist were fully funded at the requested amount.  32 
 33 
Ms. Miller reported the requested budget for operating expenses was level from last year with the 34 
exception of the replacement of two computers. Otherwise, it was a level budget. 35 
 36 
Government Office Building (GOB - 19500) 37 
Ms. Miller informed the Council the one essential item was the replacement of the first and second floor 38 
fire door. She requested $17,500 with $5,000 going towards GOB security enhancements. Only $12,500 39 
was funded. 40 
 41 
CIP 42 
She reported the HVAC return air fans at $37,500 were in the CIP. Mr. Heath requested that the City 43 
discuss the need for balance in the system with the County. Ms. Jackson asked when the repairs were 44 
made if the County partnered with the City, and Ms. Miller said they both shared ½.  45 
 46 
The GOB lighting and ceiling tile replacement would be for the City offices and would be completed 47 
progressively at one floor per year. The estimate was $30,000 for the first phase, which would be the 48 
third floor. There would also be rebates from Delmarva Power. 49 



 
April 21, 2022 Budget Work Session 

Approved:  
2 | P a g e  

 
 

 50 
Information Service (IS - 18000 ) 51 
Joining Council was Director Bill Garrett and Assistant Directors John O’Brien and Steve Dickerson. 52 
 53 
Mr. Garrett discussed the essential item of reclassing the GIS Analyst to a higher grade. It was cost 54 
neutral and would only be changing the classification. He as requested a merit increase for Will Schlager 55 
who won employee of the month for his idea of streamlining the onboarding process and requested a 56 
merit increase for Mike Fiorelli who kept the department going through COVID and streamlining the City 57 
into a new firewall to increase security. 58 
 59 
Mr. Garrett explained the handout for how the GIS Tech position would be funded by finding resources 60 
within his own budget.  Ms. Glanz noted this was the type of approach they wanted all the departments 61 
to take. President Heath applauded the effort but questioned getting rid of the interns and Mr. O’Brien 62 
said the intent of the internship program was to hire them on into the position.  63 
 64 
Mr. Dickerson explained the benefits of the help desk. They initially used a free software but the City has 65 
grown beyond the capabilities of the software and they selected a cloud-based software. 66 
 67 
Mr. Garrett explained everything was level funded and the big accounts were software and maintenance 68 
contracts. President Heath noticed quite a bit of reduction and asked about the Equipment Account and 69 
Hardware Account. Mr. Garrett said Hardware was reduced because in lieu of the annual computer 70 
refresh where each department bought their own computers, this year they received $15,000 to buy the 71 
computers for the departments, as needed. Lease payments were reduced because of the High 72 
Availability Server Arrays in the CIP from three years ago. $57,900 was the cost of  three super servers 73 
and all of the networking associated. Last year was the final year of the item in the CIP.  74 
 75 
President asked about the status of the IS upgrades. Mr. Garrett said they were successful and they were 76 
replacing other fiber connections to increase connectivity, which was funded out of Operating.  77 
Mr. O’Brien reported an RFP was created to replace CIS. To avoid a lot of problems, they hired TSSI from 78 
Michigan to build the RFP and do the project management. TSSI did a great job working with SPD, Fire, 79 
Procurement and IS to create the RFP which had approximately 10,000 items the companies would be 80 
rated on. TSSI would act as the City’s project management team during the implementation process.  81 
 82 
Mr. Garrett said that cybersecurity was part of Mr. Dickerson’s job duties. Mr. Dickerson reported they 83 
purchased a new firewall VPN, which was implemented and working great. The old one was beginning to 84 
fail and was becoming increasingly difficult to update. Another tangible asset was the Log Aggregation 85 
Software introduced into the system to identify failed log ins into the system. It monitored permission 86 
group changes which could indicate an attempted system intrusion. Dashboards were set up to identify 87 
other possible compromises. They increased monitoring and set up email lists of some of the trends in 88 
the cyber security world. They tested employees and provided mandatory education to those who 89 
failed. They re-worked permission structures so that users had access only to what they needed. The 90 
network was segmented off so that if a section was breached, the hackers could only get so far. They 91 
implemented a robust back up strategy. They found vulnerability in the City’s water system, and made 92 
corrections resulting in the City’s system becoming completely air gapped totally from the internet, 93 
which was the industry’s standard. They also had a new vendor managing SCADA (water system). 94 
 95 
Legal (17000) 96 
City Attorney Ashley Bosche joined Council and President Heath asked her if ongoing lawsuits were 97 
considered in the development of the budget. She said the bills were relatively the same each month 98 



 
April 21, 2022 Budget Work Session 

Approved:  
3 | P a g e  

 
 

and they had been on the job for a year and knew that the bills were generally about the same. Unless 99 
they were brought into some unforeseen litigation, she thought they would stay right on target. With 100 
the law changes in police accountability going into effect July 1, Legal kept very busy. She added that the 101 
rates were staying the same and they offered monthly discounts. 102 
 103 
President Heath appreciated the fact that they had specialists in the group that could represent the City. 104 
 105 
Salisbury-Wicomico Economic Development Corporation (SWED) (11600-569212) 106 
SWED Executive Director Dave Ryan joined Council and reported they wrapped up their COVID Assistant 107 
Funds in the past year to the amount of $13.8 million to over 1, 220 small businesses having less than 20 108 
employees in Wicomico County, most being within City limits. The need was great and immediate.  109 
 110 
He reported on the success of various entities around the City and County. There were new initiatives in 111 
workforce development in the next year, and Mr. Ryan requested $50,000. 112 
 113 
Art, Business, & Culture Department (ABCD) (11600) 114 
Director Allen Swiger joined Council and Mr. Kitzrow informed Council that they were tracking the new 115 
department revenue-wise through the Business Development accounts (11600) and they would become 116 
the new ABCD accounts. The Zoo would track their revenues through 40000.   117 
 118 
The Zoo requested a part-time maintenance position which was not funded, and a Guest Services 119 
Seasonal Manager. If the manager position was funded, it would be a wash to the account. The Director 120 
of the Zoo would report to Mr. Swiger.  121 
 122 
When Ben Baker retired, the City moved his salary from Field Operations to create Mr. Swiger’s position.  123 
 124 
40000 125 
The Zoo had a reduction to part-time staff because the advance technical team would be doing work.  126 
 127 
President Heath was concerned about compression. Mr. Kitzrow said that 6% was not where they 128 
wanted to be in some of the higher end employees. In order to hire the HR Director, they had to move 129 
up $20,000. The people applying for the DID Director position were requesting salaries off the pay chart.  130 
President Heath asked Council and Administration to review their priorities and they would meet again 131 
and compare. If they agreed on them in order, then everything else was numbers.  132 
 133 
Ms. Jackson wished the other departments would have been able to follow Mr. Garrett’s lead and move 134 
money around, keeping a flat budget. Public safety was a concern for her. 135 
 136 
Mr. Boda encouraged Administration to let the other departments know how Mr. Garrett budgeted his 137 
priorities. Our people should always be top priority along with the safety of the water supply. 138 
 139 
With nothing further to discuss, the Budget Work Session adjourned at 10:49 a.m. 140 
 141 
______________________________________ 142 
City Clerk 143 

 144 
______________________________________ 145 
Council President 146 



 
May 17, 2022 Budget Work Session 

Approved:  
1 | P a g e  

 
 

CITY OF SALISBURY 1 
BUDGET WORK SESSION 2 

May 17, 2022 3 
 4 

Public Officials Present 5 
 6 

Council President John “Jack” R. Heath     Councilwoman Angela M. Blake  7 
Councilwoman Michele Gregory      Councilwoman April Jackson  8 
 9 

Public Officials Absent 10 
Mayor Jacob R. Day 11 

Council Vice-President Muir Boda 12 
 13 

In Attendance 14 
City Administrator Julia Glanz, Deputy City Administrator Andy Kitzrow, Finance Director Keith Cordrey, 15 
City Clerk Kimberly Nichols, City Staff and Department Heads, and members from the press 16 
****************************************************************************** 17 
The City Council convened in a hybrid Budget Session at 8:30 a.m. via Zoom and in Conference 18 
Room #306.  19 
 20 
City Administrator Julia Glanz discussed adding the EMS Sgt. rank and adding an additional 2% for 21 
employees with 10-14 years with the City and for those 15 years plus would get an additional 4% above 22 
and beyond the 6% for all employees minus sworn PD. Although the Fire Department articulated the 23 
situation very well, the compression problem did not only exist in the Fire Department.  24 
 25 
Review of changes 26 
 27 
Finance Director Keith Cordrey additional funding was needed for the $80,000 Tiny Home Project in the 28 
CIP and found $52,500 to pull from previous funding from the GOB and had to put in another $17,500 in 29 
transfers from the General Fund. 30 
 31 
They had $40,000 to expand DID’s offices and found out they needed an additional $10,000 for the 32 
Comp Plan.  33 
 34 
Two trucks were funded in FY22 but the City was unable to process them so their lease of $14,000 had 35 
to be inserted. The trash truck was recently procured and also had to be added.  36 
 37 
The Community Development Grant match was reduced by $42,000 and the Police Grant match by 38 
$50,000 from the original submission. The grant match for the Housing First Program was increased. 39 
 40 
The following changes were proposed in Finance since they were integrating Grants into the 41 
department, as follows: 42 

• Freeze the Grant Specialist position 43 
• Moved one of the Asst. Director- Finance into Grants Manager position 44 

 45 
Ms. Glanz reported they did not know enough about the new mandates for Policing with the mental 46 
health assessment and physical fitness assessment to be able to place a dollar amount on them in the 47 
budget. When they did find out, they would go from there and handle as an “as needed” basis. 48 
 49 



 
May 17, 2022 Budget Work Session 

Approved:  
2 | P a g e  

 
 

Ms. Glanz asked for feedback regarding the Fire Department Rescue Truck not being in the budget. Ms. 50 
Jackson spoke with Delegate Sample-Hughes about possible State funding, and Ms. Blake asked if the 51 
City had considered a used truck. President Heath commented that his experience with used fire 52 
equipment was not good. If not funded this year, it would have to be funded next year.  53 
 54 
Water & Sewer Adjustments 55 
Mr. Cordrey noted they needed to continue the Water Meter Replacement Program at $200,000 per 56 
year, there were reclassifications needing processing, $40,000 share of Water & Sewer for the longevity 57 
steps as contributed also in the General Fund, and a small adjustment for the PILOTs. President Heath 58 
feared that renters would be hammered with the 8% increase. Ms. Blake asked if the quarterly Water & 59 
Sewer bill could be broken down into a monthly bill, which would be more manageable. Mr. Kitzrow said 60 
they were working through that, but they would have to hire additional meter readers to just read the 61 
meters every month. Council would consider an extra 2% above the already proposed 6%. 62 
 63 
Parking 64 
Mr. Kitzrow said the new parking garage would be on Lot 1 for the proposed 230 new apartments. They 65 
plan was when they built the parking garage there would be no additional burden on the General Fund 66 
and there would be an additional contribution from the developer in the first year.  67 
 68 
Mr. Cordrey said there was no Debt Dervice in the Parking Fund and would have to return with a Bond 69 
Ordinance. This was a placeholder to see that it was coming. 70 
 71 
Stormwater  72 
A $5 increase was added to the Stormwater Fees, bringing the total fee to $30.  73 
 74 
Marina 75 
Mr. Cordrey said there were no proposed adjustments. 76 
 77 
Fees 78 
Mr. Kitzrow and Nate Sansom, Special Assistant to the Mayor, discussed the fees on the Fees Schedule 79 
with Council. 80 
 81 
EMS 82 
Chief Tull joined via Zoom and said the changes in EMS were recommended by the EMS billing company. 83 
 84 
Parking Rates 85 
There would be a $5 per year increase in all parking lot permits and $10 increase in permits for the 86 
garage. 87 
 88 
Trash Service Fee would be brought up to $67 from $63 per quarter. Bulk trash from $25 to $30  89 
 90 
Overview of Financial Overview 91 
 92 
Mr. Cordrey reviewed the Water Sewer aspect of the financial overview. At the last audit Cash declined 93 
by $805,000. Current Liabilities increased by $1.7 million.  Total Liabilities declined because the City 94 
reduced the bonds.  Total Net Position declined by $2.6 million to -1.8 million. Part was due to the 95 
increase in the Pension Liability and Post Employment Benefit (providing medical healthcare services to 96 
retirees). Net Operating Income declined to $2.2 million.   97 
 98 



 
May 17, 2022 Budget Work Session 

Approved:  
3 | P a g e  

 
 

Mr. Cordrey reminded Council that in FY26 they would have the original Wastewater Treatment Plant 99 
(WWTP) Debt Service and the new WWTP Debt Service, and both would have to be paid for several 100 
years. The budget was not prepared to handle the original surge and the increases were not building 101 
cash for the event. The 8% increase was the maximum they wanted to increase at this time, but would 102 
not make the problem disappear.  103 
 104 
Council reached unanimous consensus to increase the Water Sewer rate by 2% to a total of an 8% 105 
increase. 106 
 107 
Ms. Blake requested that presentations be held in the near future on the Tax Differential and the Fire 108 
Service Agreement.  109 
 110 
President Heath remarked the budget information was better every year and thanked Mr. Cordrey and 111 
his staff for the excellent work, and thanked Ms. Glanz and Mr. Kitzrow for the excellent support.   112 

 113 
With nothing further to discuss, the Budget Work Session adjourned at 10:10 a.m. 114 
 115 
 116 
______________________________________ 117 
City Clerk 118 

 119 
______________________________________ 120 
Council President 121 



May 23, 2022 Legislative Session 
  Approved: 
  1 | P a g e  

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND 1 
 2 
REGULAR MEETING MAY 23, 2022 3 
 4 

PUBLIC OFFICIALS PRESENT 5 
 6 

Council President John “Jack” R. Heath   Council Vice-President Muir Boda  7 
Councilwoman Angela M. Blake     Councilwoman Michele Gregory  8 
Councilwoman April Jackson     9 

 10 
PUBLIC OFFICIALS ABSENT 11 

 12 
Mayor Jacob R. Day 13 

 14 
IN ATTENDANCE 15 

 16 
City Administrator Julia Glanz, Procurement Contract Specialist Michael Lowe, Fire Chief John 17 
Tull, Deputy Fire Chief Darrin Scott, Water Works Director Cori Cameron, City Attorneys 18 
Ashley Bosche and Heather Konyar, City Clerk Kimberly Nichols, and members of the public 19 
****************************************************************************** 20 
CITY INVOCATION – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 21 
  22 
The City Council met in regular session at 6:00 p.m. via Zoom and in person and Council 23 
President John R. “Jack” Heath called the meeting to order. They recited the pledge to the flag 24 
followed by a moment of silent meditation or prayer.   25 
 26 
PROCLAMATION- presented by City Administrator Julia Glanz 27 
 28 
Gun Violence Awareness 29 
Ms. Glanz presented the Gun Violence Awareness proclamation in which the City of Salisbury 30 
renewed its commitment to reduce gun violence and pledged to do all it could to keep firearms 31 
out of the wrong hands and encouraged responsible gun ownership in order to keep citizens safe. 32 
 33 
AWARD PRESENTATIONS 34 
 35 
Fire Chief John Tull presented the “Citizen’s Commendation” award to Elizabeth Day and 36 
Jason Lewis for their efforts to help save a life from a burning house fire on Hartford Road.  37 
 38 
Chief Tull presented Salisbury Fire Department members Deputy Chief Darrin Scott, Lieutenant 39 
Aaron Colegrove, Sergeant Brandon Records, and Firefighter/Paramedic Brandon Hoppes the  40 
“Unit Citation” award for rescuing an occupant from the second floor of a burning home on 41 
North Division Street. 42 
 43 
ADOPTION OF LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 44 
 45 



May 23, 2022 Legislative Session 
  Approved: 
  2 | P a g e  

Ms. Jackson moved, Ms. Gregory seconded, and the vote was unanimous (5-0) to approve the 46 
legislative agenda as presented. 47 
 48 
CONSENT AGENDA- presented by City Clerk Kimberly Nichols 49 
 50 
The consent agenda, consisting of the following items, was unanimously approved on a motion 51 
and seconded by Mr. Boda and Ms. Gregory, respectively: 52 
 53 

• April 25, 2022  Council Meeting Minutes 
• May 2, 2022 Work Session Minutes 
• May 2, 2022 Special Meeting Minutes 
• May 9, 2022 Council Meeting Minutes 
• May 16, 2022 Work Session Minutes 

 54 
AWARD OF BIDS- presented by Procurement Contract Specialist Michael Lowe 55 
 56 
The following item was unanimously approved on a motion and seconded by Ms. Jackson and 57 
Ms. Blake, respectively: 58 
 59 

• ITB 22-126 Department of Field Operations Sanitation Truck  $ 211,285.00 60 
 61 
RESOLUTION- presented by City Administrator Julia Glanz 62 
 63 

• Resolution No. 3170- authorizing the Mayor to execute a “legal services agreement” with 64 
the law firms of Baron & Budd, P.C., Cossich, Sumich, Parsiola & Taylor LLC and Macleod 65 
Law Group, LLC for representation of the City of Salisbury in litigation arising from 66 
contamination of public drinking water, and possibly the Wastewater Treatment Plant, by 67 
products containing perfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) 68 

 69 
Mr. Boda moved, Ms. Jackson seconded, and the vote was unanimous (5-0) to approve  70 
Resolution No. 3170. 71 
 72 
Ms. Jackson asked about the harmful effects of PFAS and City Attorney Heather Konyar and 73 
Water Works Director Cori Cameron joined Council at the table. Ms. Konyar answered that 74 
they did not know yet how harmful PFAS was yet, but the EPA fact sheet stated they caused 75 
cancers and other health issues on pregnant women and unborn babies. She provided an 76 
overview of the basics of the lawsuit. Ms. Cameron said there was a current treatment limit 77 
for tests with 70 parts per trillion, and the City’s test was 14 parts per trillion.  78 
 79 

• Resolution No. 3171- accepting a vehicle forfeited by the Circuit Court for Wicomico 80 
County and adding such vehicle to the Salisbury Police Department vehicle fleet for use in 81 
various operations and police details 82 

 83 
Ms. Jackson moved, Ms. Blake seconded, and the vote was unanimous to approve Resolution 84 
No. 3171. 85 

 86 



May 23, 2022 Legislative Session 
Approved: 
3 | P a g e  

PUBLIC HEARINGS- Mayor’s Proposed FY23 Budget, Water & Sewer Rates, Fees, and Constant 
Yield Tax Rate-  City Attorney Ashley Bosche 

• Ordinance No. 2721- appropriating the necessary funds for the operation of the government
and administration of the City of Salisbury, Maryland for the period July 1, 2022 to June 30,
2023, establishing the levy for the General Fund for the same fiscal
period and establishing the appropriation for the Water and Sewer, Parking Authority, City
Marina, and Storm Water Funds

Ms. Bosche presented Ordinance No. 2721.

President Heath opened the Public Hearing at 6:27 p.m. As there were no requests to speak,
he closed the Public Hearing.

• Ordinance No. 2722- increasing Water and Sewer rates by 6% and making said changes
effective for all bills dated October 1, 2022 and thereafter, unless and until
subsequently revised or changed

Ms. Bosche presented Ordinance No. 2722.

President Heath opened the Public Hearing at 6:28 p.m. As there were no requests to speak,
he closed the Public Hearing.

• Ordinance No. 2723- to set fees for Fiscal Year 2023 and thereafter, unless and until
subsequently revised or changed

Ms. Bosche presented Ordinance No. 2723.

President Heath opened the Public Hearing at 6:29 p.m. As there were no requests to speak,
he closed the Public Hearing.

• Constant Yield Tax Rate

Ms. Bosche presented the Constant Yield Tax Rate information.

President Heath opened the Public Hearing at 6:33 p.m. As there were no requests to speak,
he closed the Public Hearing.

87 
PUBLIC HEARING - Ordinance No. 2716- 2nd reading- amending Section 17.04.040 of the code, 88 
entitled “Method of Regulation”, to add confirmatory language exempting Federal, State and Local 89 
governments from Title 17 of the Salisbury City Code- City Attorney Ashley Bosche 90 

91 
Ms. Bosche presented Ordinance No. 2716 for second reading. 92 

93 
President Heath opened the Public Hearing for Ordinance No. 2716 at 6:34 p.m. As there were no 94 
requests to speak, he closed the Public Hearing. 95 



May 23, 2022 Legislative Session 
Approved: 
4 | P a g e  

 96 
Ms. Jackson moved to approve Ordinance No. 2716, Mr. Boda seconded, and the vote was 97 
unanimously approved on a vote of 5-0.   98 

99 
ORDINANCES- presented by City Attorney Ashley Bosche 100 
 101 

• Ordinance No. 2725- 2nd reading- authorizing the Mayor to accept Law Enforcement  Body
Camera Grant funds from the Local Government Insurance Trust in the amount of $4,425 for
the Salisbury Police body worn cameras project

Mr. Boda moved, Ms. Blake seconded, and the vote was 5-0 to approve Ordinance No.
2725 for second reading.

• Ordinance No. 2726- 2nd reading- authorizing the Mayor to accept donated funds in the
amount of $1,000 from the Community Foundation of the Eastern Shore, and to approve an
amendment to the FY22 Budget to appropriate these funds to partially cover costs of the
purchase and installation of a new water fountain at Ben’s Red Swings Playground

Mr. Jackson moved, Ms. Blake seconded, and the vote was unanimous to approve Ordinance
No. 2726 for second reading.

• Ordinance No. 2727- 2nd reading- authorizing the Mayor to enter into a memorandum of
understanding with the Wicomico County Local Behavioral Health Authority for the purpose
of accepting Community Mental Health Services (COVID relief) Block Grant  Funds in the
amount of $12,562 and to approve a budget amendment to the Grant Fund to appropriate
these funds for the Homeless Services Case Specialist position

Ms. Jackson moved, Mr. Boda seconded, and the vote was unanimous to approve Ordinance
No. 2727 for second reading.

• Ordinance No. 2728- 1st reading- approving an amendment of the City’s FY22 General Fund
Budget and General Capital Project Fund Budget to provide funds for the “Poplar Hill
Mansion ADA Ramp and Bathroom Project”

Mr. Boda moved, Ms. Gregory seconded, and the vote was unanimous to approve Ordinance
No. 2728 for first reading.

• Ordinance No. 2729- 1st reading- amending Chapter 5.64 of the Salisbury City Code, entitled 
“Towing Companies”, to update procedures for dispatching police directed towing, operations
of a police directed tow on scene, and penalties for violations of the code

Ms. Jackson moved, Ms. Gregory seconded, and the vote was unanimous to approve
Ordinance No. 2729 for first reading.

 102 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 103 



May 23, 2022 Legislative Session 
  Approved: 
  5 | P a g e  

 104 
Two members of the public provided the following comments: 105 

• Did not hear proposals about the multiple tow companies owned by the same owner, which 106 
needed to be addressed. It was not fair to the individual tow companies for the owners of the 107 
multiple companies getting three or four times the amount of calls. It was hard to meet all of 108 
the expenses when their company was getting one call versus another company getting three 109 
or four calls that had the same owner. 110 

• President Heath read a letter to enter into the record from Don D’Aquilla of D & C Sales 111 
Inc., dated May 23, 2022 stating the increase in fees were greatly appreciated. 112 

• Ms. Glanz said previously in the Code there was a section about not having any financial 113 
interests in other companies. Mr. Sansom advised they added a section to include a book 114 
inspection to give the City tools to look at financial records. The issue should be tackled 115 
moving forward. Ms. Bosche said the language was found in 5.64.120 (F). 116 

• Asked if Section C of the Tow Ordinance was say the tow companies had to release after 117 
hours. It was not clear that he couldn’t shut his business down even on Christmas. It said 118 
they had to release cars 365 days per year. 119 

• Speaker remarked about the section regarding fenced in lots versus inside storage having 120 
the same rates, and said they had to have an $80,000 building versus a $7,000 impound lot 121 
to both store a car in for $50 per night. 122 

• Council reminded the tow companies that this was only the first reading. 123 
• Mr. Boda read the fee ordinance about releasing after normal business hours only at the 124 

tower’s discretion. Normal business hours were defined as Monday through Friday, 9 a.m. 125 
to 6 p.m. 126 

• Speaker and Council discussed the section about covering vehicles and tow company 127 
owners said there had to be different charges, but was dictated about how much he could 128 
charge.  129 

• President Heath informed the audience they still had another Work Session between this 130 
meeting and the next meeting. He suggested coming back to the June 6th Work Session to 131 
share ideas. 132 

• Mr. Sansom said that regarding the weekend, holiday or after-hours release, the amendment 133 
stated that if the tow company refused to release the vehicle during either of the mentioned 134 
events, then no storage fees would be permitted for each day the release was refused.  135 

 136 
ADMINISTRATION AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 137 
 138 
Ms. Glanz thanked the City team for the Hops on the River, Movies on the River, Haitian Flag Day, 139 
and Third Friday. The beginning of summer events happened with the excellent help from Field 140 
Ops, SPD, Fire, and the new ABCD Team. 141 
 142 
Mr. Boda said the weekend events were enjoyable. Visit NationalFolkFestival.com/volunteer to help 143 
out at the National Folk Festival this year.   144 
 145 
Ms. Jackson asked everyone to be safe and social distance. There was a meeting held last week 146 
regarding the dirt bikes and there would likely be another one. They left with some good ideas.  147 
 148 
Ms. Blake asked everyone to remember bus safety and to donate blood, if healthy enough. 149 



May 23, 2022 Legislative Session 
  Approved: 
  6 | P a g e  

Ms. Gregory said COVID was back in the news and numbers were almost 14% in Wicomico 150 
County. Please check on neighbors and friends and family with no air conditioner when it’s hot out. 151 
 152 
President Heath seconded Ms. Blake’s request for blood, as the Eastern Shore was severely low on 153 
blood supply, and asked for everyone to continue to keep Ukraine in their prayers.   154 
 155 
ADJOURNMENT 156 
 157 
With no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 7:28 p.m.  158 
 159 
_______________________________ 160 
City Clerk 161 
 162 
_______________________________ 163 
Council President  164 





RESOLUTION NO. 3174 1 
 2 

 BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Salisbury, Maryland that the following 3 
individual is appointed to the Disability Advisory Committee for the term ending as 4 
indicated. 5 
 6 
  Name      Term Ending 7 
  Michelle Hahn     June 2025 8 
   9 
 10 
 11 
 THE ABOVE RESOLUTION was introduced and duly passed at a meeting of the 12 
Council of the City of Salisbury, Maryland held on June ___________, 2022. 13 
 14 
ATTEST: 15 
 16 
 17 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 18 
Kimberly R. Nichols     John R. Heath 19 
CITY CLERK      PRESIDENT, City Council 20 
 21 
 22 
APPROVED BY ME THIS 23 
 24 
__________ day of ______, 2022 25 
 26 
 27 
_____________________________ 28 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 29 





RESOLUTION NO. 3175 1 
 2 

 BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Salisbury, Maryland that the following 3 
individual is appointed to the Disability Advisory Committee for the term ending as 4 
indicated. 5 
 6 
  Name      Term Ending 7 
  Ivy McIntyre     June 2025 8 
   9 
 10 
 11 
 THE ABOVE RESOLUTION was introduced and duly passed at a meeting of the 12 
Council of the City of Salisbury, Maryland held on June ___________, 2022. 13 
 14 
ATTEST: 15 
 16 
 17 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 18 
Kimberly R. Nichols     John R. Heath 19 
CITY CLERK      PRESIDENT, City Council 20 
 21 
 22 
APPROVED BY ME THIS 23 
 24 
__________ day of ______, 2022 25 
 26 
 27 
_____________________________ 28 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 29 





RESOLUTION NO. 3176 1 
 2 

 BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Salisbury, Maryland that the following 3 
individual is appointed to the Disability Advisory Committee for the term ending as 4 
indicated. 5 
 6 
  Name      Term Ending 7 
  Ron Pagano     June 2025 8 
   9 
 10 
 11 
 THE ABOVE RESOLUTION was introduced and duly passed at a meeting of the 12 
Council of the City of Salisbury, Maryland held on June ___________, 2022. 13 
 14 
ATTEST: 15 
 16 
 17 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 18 
Kimberly R. Nichols     John R. Heath 19 
CITY CLERK      PRESIDENT, City Council 20 
 21 
 22 
APPROVED BY ME THIS 23 
 24 
__________ day of ______, 2022 25 
 26 
 27 
_____________________________ 28 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 29 



   

                             MEMORANDUM 
                        
                         
 

To: Julia Glanz, City Administrator 

From: Jessie Turner, Administrative Assistant 

Subject: Appointment to the Sustainability Advisory Committee (Green Team) 

Date: June 22, 2022 

The following person has applied for appointment to the Sustainability Advisory Committee (Green 
Team) for the term ending as indicated: 
 
   Name    Term Ending 
   Charly Sager   June 2025 
 
Attached is the information from Ms. Sager and the resolution necessary for her appointment. If this 
appointment is approved, it will be placed on the next City Council agenda for review.  
 
 
Attachments 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 3177 1 
 2 

 BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Salisbury, Maryland that the following 3 
individual is appointed to the Sustainability Advisory Committee for the term ending as 4 
indicated. 5 
 6 
  Name      Term Ending 7 
  Charly Sager     June 2025  8 
   9 
 10 
 11 
 THE ABOVE RESOLUTION was introduced and duly passed at a meeting of the 12 
Council of the City of Salisbury, Maryland held on June ___________, 2022. 13 
 14 
ATTEST: 15 
 16 
 17 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 18 
Kimberly R. Nichols     John R. Heath 19 
CITY CLERK      PRESIDENT, City Council 20 
 21 
 22 
APPROVED BY ME THIS 23 
 24 
__________ day of ______, 2022 25 
 26 
 27 
_____________________________ 28 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 29 



INTER 

MEMO OFFICE 

Finance Department 

To: Julia Glanz, City Administrator 

From: Keith Cordrey, Director of Finance   

Subject: Declaration of Official Intent – FY23 Project funded from Bond Proceeds 

Date: June 21, 2022 

The FY23 Budget Schedule B includes an appropriation for two projects (i.e. Computer Aided 
Dispatch Replacement and Station #16 HVAC Replacement) each to be funded from a future 
bond issuance planned for FY2024. 

In order to adhere to U. S Treasury Regulations, the City must file a Declaration of Official Intent 
(DOOI) if the City expends the funds first and later wishes the “original expenditures” to be 
reimbursed from future bond proceeds.   

Please find attached a Resolution prepared by Bound Counsel that will result in effecting the 
DOOI that is needed.   

After your review, if you do not have questions or concerns, please forward this ordinance to 
council for their consideration. 



__________________ 
Underlining : Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through : Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 1 - 

RESOLUTION NO. 3178 1 
 2 

A RESOLUTION OF CITY OF SALISBURY MAKING A DECLARATION 3 
OF OFFICIAL INTENT REGARDING THE CITY’S REASONABLE 4 
EXPECTATION TO REIMBURSE FROM PROCEEDS OF A FUTURE 5 
BORROWING PROJECT EXPENDITURES MADE IN CONNECTION 6 
WITH TWO SEPARATE PROJECTS GENERALLY IDENTIFIED AS 7 
COMPUTER AIDED DISPATCH (CAD) REPLACEMENT AND STATION 8 
#16 HVAC REPLACEMENT. 9 

 10 
RECITALS 11 

 12 
 WHEREAS, City of Salisbury, a municipal corporation of the State of Maryland (the 13 
“City”), is in the process of undertaking two separate projects generally identified as (1) 14 
“Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) Replacement” and (2) “Station #16 HVAC Replacement” 15 
(each, a “Project” and, collectively, the “Projects”); and 16 
 17 
 WHEREAS, the City anticipates borrowing money for costs of the Projects, such borrowing 18 
to be evidenced by one or more series of general obligation bonds or other evidences of indebtedness  19 
to be issued by the City (collectively, or individually by series, the “Bonds”); and 20 
 21 

WHEREAS, the City reasonably expects to spend City funds on costs of the Projects prior to 22 
the issuance of the Bonds (or any interim financing incurred by the City in anticipation of the Bonds), 23 
and further expects to (i) to reimburse the City from proceeds of the Bonds for all or a portion of such 24 
previously paid costs of the Projects, and/or (ii) to use proceeds of the Bonds to refinance all or a 25 
portion of any interim borrowing incurred by the City that is applied to reimburse the City for prior 26 
expenditures relating to the Projects; and 27 

 28 
 WHEREAS, Section 1.150-2 of the U.S. Treasury Regulations (the “Reimbursement 29 
Regulations”) provides that a local government funding “original expenditures” intended to be 30 
reimbursed from the proceeds of  “obligations” must make a declaration of “official intent” in order 31 
to qualify such original expenditures for reimbursement from a “reimbursement bond,” all within the 32 
meaning of the Reimbursement Regulations; and 33 
 34 
 WHEREAS, the City is an “issuer” for purposes of the Reimbursement Regulations and 35 
wishes to adopt this Resolution for the purpose of evidencing the clear and official intent of the 36 
City to reimburse from reimbursement bond proceeds (meaning the Bonds or any interim financing 37 
incurred in anticipation of the Bonds) original expenditures made in connection with the Projects. 38 
 39 
 SECTION 1. NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL 40 
OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND that: 41 
  42 

(a) The Recitals to this Resolution are deemed a substantive part of this Resolution and 43 
are incorporated by reference herein, and capitalized terms defined in the Recitals to this 44 



__________________ 
Underlining : Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through : Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 2 - 

Resolution and not otherwise defined herein will have the meanings given to such terms in the 45 
Recitals hereto.  46 
 47 
 (b) The names used for the Projects in this Resolution are the names by which the 48 
Projects are generally identified in the applicable budget materials of the City for the fiscal year 49 
beginning July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2023.  It is hereby expressly recognized that 50 
expenditures for the Projects and/or issuance of any Bonds or interim financing incurred in 51 
anticipation of any Bonds may occur in a fiscal year subsequent to fiscal year 2023.  References 52 
in this Resolution to either such Project shall be deemed to (i) be to such Project as it may be 53 
referred to by similar but not the exact same name in applicable City budgetary materials, including 54 
any capital improvement plan, and (ii) include any changes in the scope of activities of such Project 55 
and/or the name of such Project made by the City in accordance with applicable law, including 56 
(without limitation) in future fiscal years.  References in this Resolution to costs of the Projects 57 
shall be deemed to be to expenditures that constitute capital expenditures and, to the extent 58 
applicable, (i) costs of issuance of any borrowing relating to the Projects and (ii) capitalized 59 
interest.   60 
 61 
 SECTION 2.  AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that in accordance with the 62 
Reimbursement Regulations, the City hereby makes this declaration of its reasonable expectation 63 
to expend money on costs of the Projects prior to the issuance of the Bonds (or any interim 64 
financing incurred in anticipation of the Bonds) and to use proceeds of the Bonds (or of such 65 
interim financing), which Bonds and/or interim financing will qualify as a “reimbursement bond” 66 
for purposes of the Reimbursement Regulations, to reimburse all or a portion of such original 67 
expenditures made with respect to the Projects.  This Resolution is intended to be a declaration of 68 
official intent within the meaning of the Reimbursement Regulations. 69 
 70 

SECTION 3. AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the maximum principal amount 71 
of the Bonds to be issued for each Project (and the maximum principal amount of any interim 72 
financing to be incurred by the City in anticipation of the Bonds issued for each Project) is 73 
identified on Schedule A attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 74 

 75 
SECTION 4. AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the provisions of this 76 

Resolution shall be liberally construed in order to effectuate the purposes of this Resolution. 77 
 78 
SECTION 5. AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall become 79 

effective upon adoption by the Council and approval by the Mayor.  Pursuant to Charter Section 80 
SC7-46A, this Resolution may not be petitioned to referendum. 81 

 82 
 83 
 84 
 85 

[CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 86 
  87 



__________________ 
Underlining : Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through : Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 3 - 

 THIS RESOLUTION was introduced and duly adopted at a meeting of the Council of the 88 
City of Salisbury held on the _________________________ day of 89 
_________________________________, 2022. 90 
 91 
 92 
ATTEST: 93 
 94 
 95 
___________________________________  ___________________________________  96 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk   John R. Heath, President  97 
       Salisbury City Council 98 
       99 
 100 
APPROVED BY ME THIS ___________ DAY OF _____________________________, 2022: 101 
 102 
 103 
 104 
___________________________________ 105 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 106 
       107 
    108 
  109 
 110 

 111 
 112 

#227076;58111.001 113 
 114 
  115 



__________________ 
Underlining : Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 
Strike-through : Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 4 - 

SCHEDULE A 116 
 117 

IDENTIFICATION OF THE PROJECTS AND MAXIMUM PRINCIPAL AMOUNTS 118 
 119 
 120 

 
 

Name of Project 

Maximum Principal Amount of the Bonds to 
be Issued or of Interim Financing to be 

Incurred for Each Project1 

  
Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) Replacement $805,000 
Station #16 HVAC Replacement    130,000 
  

TOTAL $935,000 
 121 

_______ 122 
1  The specified maximum principal amount for each Project applies, to the extent applicable, to both 123 
any Bonds issued and to any interim financing incurred for such Project. 124 
 125 
 126 

 127 



AS AMENDED ON JUNE 21, 2022 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2729________ 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY AMENDING CHAPTER 5.64 3 
OF THE SALISBURY CITY CODE, ENTITLED “TOWING COMPANIES”, TO 4 
UPDATE PROCEDURES FOR DISPATCHING POLICE DIRECTED TOWING, 5 
OPERATIONS OF A POLICE DIRECTED TOW ON SCENE, AND PENALTIES 6 
FOR VIOLATIONS OF THE CODE.   7 

WHEREAS, the ongoing application, administration and enforcement of the City of Salisbury 8 
Municipal Code (the “Salisbury City Code”) demonstrates a need for its periodic review, evaluation and 9 
amendment, in order to comply with present community standards and values, and promote the public 10 
safety, health and welfare of the citizens of the City of Salisbury (the “City”); 11 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury (the “Mayor and Council”) are 12 
authorized by MD Code, Local Government, § 5-202 to adopt such ordinances, not contrary to the 13 
Constitution of Maryland, public general law or public local law, as the Mayor and Council deem necessary 14 
to assure the good government of the municipality, to preserve peace and order, to secure persons and 15 
property from damage and destruction, and to protect the health, comfort and convenience of the citizens 16 
of the City; 17 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council may amend Title 5 of the Salisbury City Code pursuant to the 18 
authority granted in § SC 2-15 of the Salisbury City Charter; 19 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council find that the health, safety and general welfare of the citizens 20 
of the City will be furthered by amending Chapter 5.64 of the Salisbury City Code to update procedures for 21 
dispatching police directed towing, operations of a police directed tow on scene, and penalties for 22 
violations; and 23 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council have determined that the amendments to Chapter 5.64 of the 24 
Salisbury City Code set forth below shall be adopted as set forth herein. 25 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 26 
OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND, that Chapter 5.64 of the Salisbury City Code is hereby amended by 27 
adding the bolded and underlined language and deleting the strikethrough language as follows: 28 

Section 1.  Chapter 5.64 of the Salisbury City Code of the Salisbury City Code, entitled “Towing 29 
Companies” is amended as follows: 30 

Chapter 5.64 TOWING COMPANIES31 

5.64.080 Investigation of employees of owner/applicants for police directed tow licenses. 32 

A. Prior to the approval of the towing company application all employees of the 33 
owner/applicant shall submit to a criminal background investigation acceptable to the police 34 
department, including the completion of an affidavit and fingerprinting. Any costs associated with 35 
such investigation shall be assumed by the owner/applicant. A felony conviction or a plea of nolo 36 
contendere involving a Part 1 crime an aggravated assault, forcible rape, murder, robbery, 37 
arson, burglary, larceny or motor vehicle theft within three years of the date of the application 38 
will automatically disqualify the employee from responding to any police directed tow or releasing 39 
any police directed tow vehicle to the owner of said vehicle.  40 

B. Prior to being allowed to respond to a police directed tow or to release a vehicle to its 41 
owner, any new employee shall submit to the background investigation process, fingerprinting and 42 
any costs associated with such investigation shall be assumed by the owner/applicant or towing 43 
company.  44 



 

 

C. Should an otherwise approved employee be found guilty of or enter a plea of nolo 45 
contendere to a felony involving any crime listed in 5.64.080A, a Part I crime said employee shall 46 
immediately notify his employer who shall notify the police department within seventy-two (72) 47 
hours of having been notified. The police department shall remove said employee from the list of 48 
approved towing company employees.  49 

D. Should the chief of police or his designee reject an employee for inclusion on the towing 50 
company's list of approved employees, the owner/applicant, the towing company and the employee 51 
shall have a right of appeal. This appeal shall be brought before the city administrator or his 52 
designee pursuant to Section 5.64.170.  53 

(Ord. No. 2188, 2-13-2012) 54 

5.64.090 Certificate of insurance to be filed by holders of police directed tow licenses. 55 

Every towing company that is licensed to conduct police directed tows, under the provisions of this 56 
chapter, regardless of whether such license was issued before or after January 23, 2012, shall file 57 
with the Director of Finance a certificate of insurance evidencing commercial liability insurance 58 
coverage for auto liability with a minimum of one million dollars ($1,000,000.00), with a maximum 59 
of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) deductible, and coverage for cargo, on unhook, and garage 60 
keeper's liability, with a minimum of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00). Each licensee shall also 61 
list the city as an additional insured. If any insurance policy lapses without replacement by another 62 
insurance policy, said lapse shall be grounds for revocation of the license.  63 

(Ord. No. 2188, 2-13-2012; Ord. No. 2444, 10-9-2017) 64 

5.64.100 Procedure for dispatching police directed towing companies. 65 

A. The Director of Finance shall furnish the police department with a current list of all towing 66 
companies with a police directed tow license. Whenever the service of a towing vehicle shall be 67 
required and a request is made to the police department for such service, the police department shall 68 
dispatch to the place where the service is required, a vehicle operated by that towing company 69 
whose license was first obtained and then request subsequent towing vehicles as needed on a 70 
chronological and rotating basis. If a towing vehicle is not available, the next company listed 71 
chronologically, in the order in which it obtained its license shall be called. If a towing vehicle does 72 
not arrive at the scene of the collision, parking violation or accident within thirty (30) minutes after 73 
the request is made, the officer at the scene shall notify the police department of such fact. It shall 74 
contact the next towing company, etc., as if the first towing company had not been contacted. 75 
Consideration will be given, however, to abnormal traffic patterns that result from adverse weather 76 
conditions, emergencies or other causes. Upon arriving at the scene of an accident, the towing 77 
company shall immediately remove the disabled vehicle to his storage lot or other location and 78 
notify, in writing, the police officer and vehicle owner, if available, of the location and telephone 79 
number of the storage lot as well as applicable towing and storage fees. If indoor storage is required, 80 
then the above rules shall apply to licensed towing companies with indoor storage. In the event a 81 
disabled vehicle cannot promptly and efficiently be removed from the scene of an accident, the 82 
towing company may have the police department call the next-listed licensee to assist in such 83 
removal.  84 

B. Any licensed towing company who shall decline three tow requests within a three-month 85 
time period shall be removed from the police directed towing list for six months. Any licensed 86 
towing company that declines or misses three tow requests within a calendar year shall have 87 
their police directed towing license suspended for one month. Following a one-month 88 
suspension, any licensed towing company that declines or misses a total of six or more tow 89 
requests within a calendar year shall have their police directed towing license suspended for 90 
three months. The following situations shall be considered a declination: 91 



 

 

1.  Failure to respond to the tow scene within the 30 minute on-scene timeframe.  92 

2.  Failure to respond when requested, regardless of reason.  93 

3.  Failure to answer or respond to a call for service. 94 

4.  Explicit refusal to respond.   95 

Should a tow company need to temporarily come out of the tow rotation for a period of more 96 
than five (5) days due to mechanical or equipment problems, sick or injured employees or a 97 
similar issue, the tow company shall notify the Police Department in writing of the reason for 98 
the unavailability and the anticipated duration.  The Police Department shall then remove 99 
the company from the rotation until the Department receives written communication from 100 
the company requesting to be placed back into rotation.  The tow company shall be placed 101 
back into the tow list rotation at the bottom of the existing list.       102 

Any licensed towing company who would like to be temporarily removed from the towing 103 
list, may request that the Finance Department temporarily suspend their police directed tow 104 
license.  Following the suspension, the tow company shall be placed back into the tow list 105 
rotation at the bottom of the existing list. All requests for a temporary suspension shall be 106 
made in writing to the Finance Department and the Police Department. Making such a 107 
request will remove a company from the list of companies with a police directed tow license 108 
until such a time that the company requests its license be reinstated. Companies may request 109 
to have their license suspended for no less than thirty (30) days and no more than one hundred 110 
and eighty (180) days. Any requests for a temporary suspension must include the requested 111 
police directed tow license suspension and reinstatement dates. 112 

C. The vehicle shall be towed by the safest and shortest practical route possible from the point 113 
of origin to the vehicle's destination. For all standard or basic tows, the vehicle shall be towed 114 
to a storage lot or facility that is located no more than ten miles from 125 North Division 115 
Street in Salisbury. 116 

D. If a department or agency of the city, a public utility or similar entity requests the relocation 117 
of a vehicle from a work zone to a nearby street parking area, the police department shall follow 118 
the procedure set forth in Paragraph A above. The fee for an emergency vehicle relocation shall be 119 
established by ordinance and shall be at the expense of the requesting city department or agency, 120 
public utility or similar entity.  121 

E. No towing company shall, in any way, solicit towing business at a scene involving either 122 
a traffic accident or a police directed tow, nor shall any such towing company attempt to take 123 
any vehicle in tow unless he or it shall have been summoned by the owner/operator of the vehicle 124 
requiring the tow or the city police department.  125 

F. No towing company that is summoned by the owner/operator of the vehicle requiring the 126 
tow shall attempt to take a vehicle in tow unless the towing company can respond within thirty (30) 127 
minutes.  128 

G. If a vehicle to be towed is gone upon the arrival of a towing company called from the police 129 
directed tow list, the towing company shall remain at the top of the list to receive the next police 130 
directed tow call.  131 
(Ord. No. 2188, 2-13-2012; Ord. No. 2444, 10-9-2017 ) 132 

5.64.105 - Operations on scene of a Police Directed Tow. 133 

A. The licensed towing company shall be required in accordance with the law to clean 134 
the roadway of debris of a crash scene.  A non-reusable cleanup materials fee may be charged 135 
and a copy of the purchase invoice for the non-reusable cleanup material must be kept on file 136 



 

 

and available for examination for two years. This fee is intended to offset the cost of single-137 
use materials used to clean up the scene of the accident and to remove accident-related debris. 138 
A non-reusable cleanup materials fee may be assessed no more than once per tow call. This 139 
fee shall be established from time to time by ordinance.   140 

B. If additional labor is essential and or required for roadway cleanup, such additional 141 
labor shall be provided by the licensed towing company.  An invoice detailing the reason for 142 
the necessity of the labor and the type of work conducted shall be kept on file and available 143 
for examination for two years.  This fee shall be established from time to time by ordinance.      144 

BC. Licensed towing company operators and owners shall comply with the established 145 
police directed tow operator code of conduct.  Failure to do so may result in penalties in 146 
accordance with section 5.64.160 . 147 

5.64.110 Release from storage. 148 
A. A licensed towing company holder of a police directed tow license shall be required to 149 
release all police directed tows disabled vehicles during the regular business day. Each licensed 150 
towing company must accept cash, certified checks, money orders, debit and at least two major 151 
credit cards (Mastercard, Visa, American Express, or Discover) for payment. If a towing company 152 
fails to accept the listed forms of payment, a five hundred dollar ($500.00) fine will be issued for 153 
the first offense and a fine not to exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000.00), will be issued for the 154 
second and subsequent offenses.  155 

B. A licensed towing company shall must provide storage lot staff on site to allow vehicle 156 
owners timely access to their vehicles during the regular business day. If a vehicle owner is unable 157 
to obtain timely release of a vehicle from storage within two hours of the initial request during the 158 
regular business day, and the police department is notified by the vehicle owner, and the violation 159 
is verified by the police department, then storage fees shall cease on the date of notification by the 160 
vehicle owner.  161 

C. Whenever a vehicle is released from the storage lot of a licensed towing company on 162 
weekends, evenings (6:00 pm to 9:00 am), or state and federal holidays, a release fee shall be 163 
charged to the vehicle owner.  This charge shall be established from time to time by 164 
ordinance. If a licensed tow company refuses to release a vehicle during evenings, weekends 165 
or state and federal holidays, then no storage fees shall be permitted for each day the release 166 
is refused. 167 

D.   Inside storage of a vehicle shall only be at the request of the vehicle owner, operator 168 
or law enforcement, or if essential or necessary to preserve the condition of the vehicle.  If 169 
indoor storage is the licensed towing company’s only method of storage available, then the 170 
inside storage shall be charged at the outside storage rate.  If, at the request of the vehicle 171 
owner, operator or law enforcement and in order to preserve the condition of the vehicle 172 
where inside storage is not available, an application of self-adhesive film (for example: Crash 173 
Wrap) may be used on the area of the vehicle which is open to the elements.  If a vehicle must 174 
be wrapped in order to be safely transported, a licensed towing company may apply a self-175 
adhesive film and charge a self-adhesive film wrap fee. This fee shall be established from time 176 
to time by ordinance. Photographic evidence of the self-adhesive film on the specified vehicle 177 
shall be kept on file with the invoice and available for inspection 178 

(Ord. No. 2188, 2-13-2012) 179 

5.64.120 Fees for towing and storage for police directed tows. 180 

Fees for towing and storage for police directed tows shall be established from time to time by ordinance.  181 



 

 

A. Every police directed towing company engaged in towing vehicles shall, at the time of its 182 
application for a license, pursuant to Section 15.64.030, file with the Director of Finance, a 183 
statement that it will charge the standard towing and storage fees adopted by ordinance.  184 

B. A police directed towing company shall not charge fees for towing, storage, or release of 185 
vehicles of less than 10,000 GVW, other than those adopted by ordinance.  186 

C. A police directed towing company shall post a list of current city council approved towing 187 
and storage fees in a conspicuous place at its storage facility using a sign substantially similar to 188 
that approved by the chief of police.  189 

D. A list of current towing and storage fees shall be given to the vehicle owner/operator, if 190 
available, at the scene of the tow by the tow truck operator. Should the vehicle owner/operator not 191 
be available at the scene, a list of current towing and storage fees shall be given to the officer in 192 
charge of the scene.  193 

E. Vehicle owners may not abandon vehicles at a city licensed facility. Leaving a vehicle at a 194 
tow facility for more than two weeks shall constitute abandonment. Abandoning a vehicle may 195 
result in forfeiture of the vehicle, criminal and/or civil prosecution including a municipal fine of up 196 
to one thousand dollars ($1,000.00), plus court and recovery costs. In cases of police impounded 197 
vehicles, the two-week time period begins on the day following the release of the vehicle by the 198 
police department. 199 

F. All approved tow companies engaging in police directed towing shall maintain 200 
adequate records to allow expeditious periodic review of their compliance with this chapter.  201 
Such records must include, but are not limited to, sequentially numbered invoices, a copy of 202 
which shall be provided to each customer and a copy of which must be retained for a period 203 
of at least two (2) years by the tow company.  In addition, the City Police Department may 204 
conduct periodic reviews of the financial records of any tow company holding a police 205 
directed tow license to ensure it is not directly or indirectly financially interested in any other 206 
licensed police directed towing company as required by 5.64.70. 207 

(Ord. No. 2188, 2-13-2012; Ord. No. 2444, 10-9-2017) 208 

5.64.130 Release of vehicles removed at the order of the police department. 209 

A. Vehicles removed at the order of the police department may not be released until approved 210 
by the police department and until the payment of all fines and fees has been made. In the case of 211 
city parking regulations, this requirement applies uniformly to all:  212 

1. Motor vehicles not registered in the state of Maryland;  213 

2. Motor vehicles registered in the state of Maryland;  214 

3. Motor vehicles registered in the state of Maryland to leasing companies and rental 215 
agencies;  216 

4. Nonregistered motor vehicles.  217 

B. Vehicles shall be stored for a minimum of two weeks unless released as set forth above. 218 
After two weeks of storage, the vehicle may be removed from storage by the licensed towing 219 
company with written approval of the police department. No abandoned vehicle shall be scrapped 220 
except in accordance with Maryland State Law.  221 

C. Personal property of owners/companies not attached to the vehicle shall be immediately 222 
returned to owners/companies upon owner's/company's request, unless the police department 223 
requires retention of the personal property not attached to the vehicle. Example of items which 224 



 

 

are not considered personal property for the purposes of this section include but are not 225 
limited to: stereos, batteries, license plates, etc.   226 

D. No vehicle shall be released to the owner or the owner's authorized agent until proof of 227 
ownership and a valid identification is provided to the towing company.  228 

(Ord. No. 2188, 2-13-2012) 229 

5.64.140 Signs required on vehicles. 230 

On each side of every towing vehicle there shall be legibly inscribed the name, telephone number, 231 
and address of the owner and the department of transportation number of each towing vehicle. 232 
Letters and numerals required by this section shall:  233 

A. Be visible from a distance of fifty (50) feet during daylight hours;  234 

B. Be permanently affixed on or applied to the towing vehicle. Magnetically affixed or 235 
applied signs do not satisfy this requirement; 236 

C. Be in letters that contrast sharply in color with the background on which the letters are 237 
placed;  238 

D. Comply with Maryland Vehicle Law 22-404.3.  239 

(Ord. No. 2188, 2-13-2012) 240 

5.64.150 Unlawful to provide bail if holding a police directed tow license. 241 

It is unlawful for any towing company holding a police directed tow license to offer to secure or 242 
provide bail or to enter into any agreement, oral or written, to secure or provide bail or to arrange 243 
for the providing of bail for any person involved in a motor vehicle collision or accident in the city, 244 
with the exception that this section shall not apply to bona fide automobile clubs, associations or 245 
insurance companies.  246 

(Ord. No. 2188, 2-13-2012) 247 

5.64.160 Violations—Penalties. 248 

Any towing company that violates any of the provisions of this chapter shall be subject to license 249 
suspension for up to ninety (90) days, for a first offense, or revocation for up to one year, for a 250 
second offense, by the chief of police. No new license shall be issued during a period of suspension 251 
or revocation. In addition, any towing company, its employees and agents who shall violate any of 252 
the provisions of this chapter, other than the provisions of chapter 5.64.100 (B) concerning tow 253 
declinations, shall be guilty of a civil infraction and shall be subject to a fine not to exceed five 254 
hundred dollars ($500.00) for a first violation or one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) for subsequent 255 
violations. Any towing company, its employees and agents found guilty of perjury under Maryland 256 
Criminal Law Title 9 shall be subject to imprisonment not exceeding ten years. Any towing 257 
company, its employees, and agents who shall violate the provisions of chapter 5.64.100 (B) 258 
shall be subject to license suspension in accordance with the provisions enumerated in chapter 259 
5.64.100.  260 

(Ord. No. 2188, 2-13-2012) 261 

5.64.170 Appeal. 262 

Any towing company whose license is suspended or revoked by the chief of police or an 263 
owner/applicant whose application is rejected, or a towing company and its employee who has been 264 
rejected may appeal that decision to the city administrator in writing within ten days of the date of 265 
the decision. Within twenty-one (21) days after receipt of the appeal, the city administrator or his 266 
designee shall review the file, hear any testimony the city administrator or his designee deems 267 



 

 

necessary, and render a written decision either affirming, reversing, or modifying the decision of 268 
the chief of police. Failure to file a timely appeal shall constitute an acceptance of the police chief's 269 
action.  270 

(Ord. No. 2188, 2-13-2012) 271 

5.64.180 Severability. 272 

Severability is intended throughout and within the provisions of the ordinance. If any section, 273 
subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this ordinance is held to be invalid or 274 
unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, then that decision shall not affect the validity 275 
of the remaining portions of this ordinance.  276 

(Ord. No. 2188, 2-13-2012) 277 

BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 278 
SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 279 

Section 2.  It is the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision 280 
of this Ordinance shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 281 

Section 3.  It is further the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that if any 282 
section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, 283 
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication 284 
shall apply only to the section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision so adjudged and all other 285 
provisions of this Ordinance shall remain and shall be deemed valid and enforceable. 286 

Section 4.  The recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of the Ordinance as 287 
if such recitals were specifically set forth at length in this Section 4. 288 

Section 5.   This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the date of its final passage. 289 

THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the City 290 
of Salisbury held on the 23rd ______ day of May___________, 2022 and thereafter, a statement of the 291 
substance of the Ordinance having been published as required by law, in the meantime, was finally passed 292 
by the Council of the City of Salisbury on the 21st _____ day of June _____________, 2022 293 

ATTEST: 294 

 295 

_____________________________   __________________________________ 296 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk   John R. Heath, City Council President 297 
 298 
Approved by me, this ________day of ______________, 2022. 299 
 300 
_____________________________ 301 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 302 
 303 

 304 


	6.27.22 Agenda
	4-19-22 Budget Work Session Minutes
	4-21-22 Budget Work Session Minutes
	5-17-22 Budget Work Session Minutes
	5-23-22 Council Meeting Minutes
	Memo- Hahn Appointment
	Resolution No. 3174
	Memo- McIntyre Appointment
	Resolution No. 3175
	M- Pagano Appointment
	Resolution No. 3176
	Memo- Sager Appointment
	Resolution No. 3177
	Memo- DOOI June 2022
	Resolution No. 3178
	Ordinance No. 2729- 2nd reading



